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Disclaimer
Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this document may constitute forward-looking statements or financial outlooks under 
applicable securities legislation. Such forward-looking statements or information typically contain statements with words such as "anticipate", 
"believe", "expect", "plan", "intend", "estimate", "propose", or similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook. Forward 
looking statements or information in this document may include, but are not limited to: capital expenditures and Vermilion’s ability to fund such 
expenditures; Vermilion’s additional debt capacity providing it with additional working capital; the return of capital; the flexibility of Vermilion’s capital 
program and operations; business strategies and objectives; operational and financial performance; sustainability (Environment, Social, and 
Governance or ESG) data and performance; estimated volumes of reserves and resources; petroleum and natural gas sales; future production levels 
and the timing thereof, including Vermilion’s 2022 guidance, and rates of average annual production growth; the effect of changes in crude oil and 
natural gas prices, changes in exchange rates and significant declines in production or sales volumes due to unforeseen circumstances; the effect of 
possible changes in critical accounting estimates; statements regarding the growth and size of Vermilion’s future project inventory, and the wells 
expected to be drilled in 2022; exploration and development plans and the timing thereof; Vermilion’s ability to reduce its debt; statements regarding 
Vermilion’s hedging program, its plans to add to its hedging positions, and the anticipated impact of Vermilion’s hedging program on project 
economics and free cash flows; the potential financial impact of climate-related risks; acquisition and disposition plans and activities and the timing 
thereof; operating and other expenses, including the payment and amount of future dividends; matters relating to energy security and inflation 
including the European Union solidarity contribution; royalty and income tax rates and Vermilion’s expectations regarding future taxes and taxability; 
and the timing of regulatory proceedings and approvals.

Such forward looking statements or information are based on a number of assumptions, all or any of which may prove to be incorrect. In addition to 
any other assumptions identified in this document, assumptions have been made regarding, among other things: the ability of Vermilion to obtain 
equipment, services and supplies in a timely manner to carry out its activities in Canada and internationally; the ability of Vermilion to market crude 
oil, natural gas liquids, and natural gas successfully to current and new customers; the timing and costs of pipeline and storage facility construction 
and expansion and the ability to secure adequate product transportation; the timely receipt of required regulatory approvals; the ability of Vermilion to 
obtain financing on acceptable terms; foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates; future crude oil, natural gas liquids, and natural gas prices; 
and management’s expectations relating to the timing and results of exploration and development activities and acquisition activities.

Although Vermilion believes that the expectations reflected in such forward looking statements or information are reasonable, undue reliance should 
not be placed on forward looking statements because Vermilion can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Financial 
outlooks are provided for the purpose of understanding Vermilion’s financial position and business objectives, and the information may not be 
appropriate for other purposes. Forward looking statements or information are based on current expectations, estimates, and projections that involve 
a number of risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by Vermilion and described in the 
forward looking statements or information. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: the ability of management to execute its 
business plan; the risks of the oil and gas industry, both domestically and internationally, such as operational risks in exploring for, developing and 
producing crude oil, natural gas liquids, and natural gas; risks and uncertainties involving geology of crude oil, natural gas liquids, and natural gas 
deposits; risks inherent in Vermilion's marketing operations, including credit risk; the uncertainty of reserves estimates and reserves life and 
estimates of resources and associated expenditures; the uncertainty of estimates and projections relating to production and associated expenditures; 
potential delays or changes in plans with respect to exploration or development projects; the timing, and results, of acquisition activities; Vermilion's 
ability to enter into or renew leases on acceptable terms; fluctuations in crude oil, natural gas liquids, and natural gas prices, foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates; health, safety, and environmental risks; uncertainties as to the availability and cost of financing; the ability of 
Vermilion to add production and reserves through exploration and development activities; the possibility that government policies or laws may 
change or governmental approvals may be delayed or withheld; uncertainty and current evolutions with relation to sustainability/ESG reporting 
methodologies; uncertainty in amounts and timing of royalty payments; risks associated with existing and potential future law suits and regulatory 
actions against Vermilion; and other risks and uncertainties described elsewhere in this document or in Vermilion's other filings with Canadian 
securities regulatory authorities.

The forward looking statements or information contained in this document are made as of the date hereof and Vermilion undertakes no obligation to 
update publicly or revise any forward looking statements or information, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, unless 
required by applicable securities laws.

This document contains metrics commonly used in the oil and gas industry. These oil and gas metrics do not have any standardized meaning or 
standard methods of calculation and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies where similar terminology 
is used and should therefore not be used to make comparisons. Natural gas volumes have been converted on the basis of six thousand cubic feet of 
natural gas to one barrel of oil equivalent. Barrels of oil equivalent (boe) may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A boe conversion ratio of 
six thousand cubic feet to one barrel of oil is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not 
represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.
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This document may contain references to sustainability/ESG data and performance that reflect metrics and concepts that are commonly used in 
such frameworks as the Global Reporting Initiative, the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, and the Value Reporting Foundation 
(Sustainability Accounting Standards Board). Vermilion has used best efforts to align with the most commonly accepted methodologies for ESG 
reporting, including with respect to climate data and information on potential future risks and opportunities, in order to provide a fuller context for our 
current and future operations. However, these methodologies are not yet standardized, are frequently based on calculation factors that change over 
time, and continue to evolve rapidly. Readers are particularly cautioned to evaluate the underlying definitions and measures used by other 
companies, as these may not be comparable to Vermilion’s. While Vermilion will continue to monitor and adapt its reporting accordingly, the 
Company is not under any duty to update or revise the related sustainability/ESG data or statements except as required by applicable securities 
laws. 

Financial data contained within this document are reported in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated.
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Abbreviations
$M thousand dollars
$MM million dollars
AECO the daily average benchmark price for natural gas at the AECO ‘C’ hub in Alberta
bbl(s) barrel(s)
bbls/d barrels per day
boe barrel of oil equivalent, including: crude oil, condensate, natural gas liquids, and natural gas (converted on the basis of 

one boe for six mcf of natural gas)
boe/d barrel of oil equivalent per day
GJ gigajoules
LSB light sour blend crude oil reference price
mbbls thousand barrels
mcf thousand cubic feet
mmcf/d million cubic feet per day
NBP the reference price paid for natural gas in the United Kingdom at the National Balancing Point Virtual Trading Point
NGLs natural gas liquids, which includes butane, propane, and ethane
PRRT Petroleum Resource Rent Tax, a profit based tax levied on petroleum projects in Australia
tCO2e tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
TTF the price for natural gas in the Netherlands, quoted in megawatt hours of natural gas, at the Title Transfer Facility Virtual 

Trading Point
WTI West Texas Intermediate, the reference price paid for crude oil of standard grade in US dollars at Cushing, Oklahoma
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
The following is Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”), dated November 9, 2022, of Vermilion Energy Inc.’s (“Vermilion”, “we”, “our”, “us” 
or the “Company”) operating and financial results as at and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 compared with the 
corresponding periods in the prior year.

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the three and nine months 
ended September 30, 2022 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, together with the 
accompanying notes. Additional information relating to Vermilion, including its Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com or 
on Vermilion’s website at www.vermilionenergy.com.

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 and comparative 
information have been prepared in Canadian dollars, except where another currency has been indicated, and in accordance with IAS 34, "Interim 
Financial Reporting", as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB").

This MD&A includes references to certain financial and performance measures which do not have standardized meanings prescribed by International 
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). These measures include:
• Fund flows from operations: Fund flows from operations (FFO) is a total of segments measure most directly comparable to net earnings and is 

comprised of sales excluding royalties, transportation, operating, G&A, corporate income tax, PRRT, interest expense, realized loss on 
derivatives, realized foreign exchange gain (loss), and realized other income. The measure is used to assess the contribution of each business 
unit to Vermilion's ability to generate income necessary to pay dividends, repay debt, fund asset retirement obligations and make capital 
investments. A reconciliation to Net Earnings can be found within the "Non-GAAP and Other Specified Financial Measures" section of this 
MD&A.

• Free cash flow: Free cash flow (FCF) is a non-GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to Cash flows used in investing activities and 
is comprised of FFO less drilling and development costs and exploration and evaluation costs. The measure is used to determine the funding 
available for investing and financing activities including payment of dividends, repayment of long-term debt, reallocation into existing business 
units and deployment into new ventures. A reconciliation to Cash flows used in investing activities can be found within the "Non-GAAP and 
Other Specified Financial Measures" section of this MD&A.

• Net debt: Net debt is a capital management measure in accordance with IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and is most directly 
comparable to long-term debt. Net debt is comprised of long-term debt (excluding unrealized foreign exchange on swapped USD borrowings) 
plus adjusted working capital (defined as current assets less current liabilities, excluding current derivatives and current lease liabilities), and 
represents Vermilion's net financing obligations after adjusting for the timing of working capital fluctuations. Net debt excludes lease obligations 
which are secured by a corresponding right-of-use asset. A reconciliation to long term-debt can be found within the "Financial Position Review" 
section of this MD&A.

• Operating Netbacks: Operating Netbacks is a non-GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to net earnings and is calculated as sales 
less royalties, operating expense, transportation costs, PRRT, and realized hedging gains and losses presented on a per unit basis. 
Management assesses operating netback as a measure of the profitability and efficiency of our field operations. A reconciliation to the primary 
financial statement measures can be found within "Supplemental Table 1: Netbacks" of this MD&A. 

• Fund flows from operations per boe: Fund flows from operations per boe includes general and administration expense. Fund flows from 
operations netback is used by management to assess the profitability of our business units and Vermilion as a whole. A reconciliation to the 
primary financial statement measures can be found within "Supplemental Table 1: Netbacks" of this MD&A. 

In addition, this MD&A includes references to certain financial measures which are not specified, defined, or determined under IFRS and are 
therefore considered non-GAAP financial measures. These non-GAAP financial measures are unlikely to be comparable to similar financial 
measures presented by other issuers. For a full description of these non-GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation of these measures to their 
most directly comparable GAAP measures, please refer to the “Non-GAAP and Other Specified Financial Measures” section of this MD&A. 

Product Type Disclosure
Under National Instrument 51-101 "Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities", disclosure of production volumes should include 
segmentation by product type as defined in the instrument. In this report, references to "crude oil" and "light and medium crude oil" mean "light crude 
oil and medium crude oil" and references to "natural gas" mean "conventional natural gas".

In addition, in Supplemental Table 4 "Production", Vermilion provides a reconciliation from total production volumes to product type and also a 
reconciliation of "crude oil and condensate" and "NGLs" to the product types "light crude oil and medium crude oil" and "natural gas liquids". 

Production volumes reported are based on quantities as measured at the first point of sale.
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Guidance
On November 29, 2021, we released our 2022 capital budget and associated production guidance. On March 28, 2022, we increased our 2022 
capital expenditure guidance to $500 million and our 2022 annual production guidance to 86,000 to 88,000 boe/d to reflect the post-closing impact of 
the acquisition of Leucrotta Exploration Inc. On August 11, 2022, as a result of forest fire related downtime in France, offshore drilling delays in 
Australia, combined with inflationary pressure, we increased our 2022 budget by $50 million to $550 million.

The following table summarizes our guidance:

 Date Capital Expenditures ($MM) Production (boe/d)
2022 Guidance
2022 Guidance November 29, 2021 425 83,000 to 85,000
2022 Guidance March 28, 2022 500 86,000 to 88,000
2022 Guidance August 11, 2022 550 86,000 to 88,000
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Vermilion's Business
Vermilion is a Calgary, Alberta-based international oil and gas producer focused on the acquisition, exploration, development, and optimization of 
producing properties in North America, Europe, and Australia. We manage our business through our Calgary head office and our international 
business unit offices.

YTD 2022 production of 85,099 boe/d

North America: 67%

International: 33%

YTD 2022 capital expenditures of $382.5MM

North America: 59%

International: 41%

YTD 2022 fund flows from operations of $1,350.6MM

North America: 40%

International: 60%
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Consolidated Results Overview

 Q3 2022 Q3 2021
Q3/22 vs. 

Q3/21 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
2022 vs. 

2021
Production (1)       

Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  37,315  38,777 (4)%  37,064  38,777 (4)%
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,068 (2)%  8,117  8,279 (2)%
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  234.12  226.73 3%  239.51  232.12 3%
Total (boe/d)  84,237  84,633 (1)%  85,099  85,742 (1)%
Build (draw) in inventory (mbbls)  176  (112)  282  187 

Financial metrics   
Fund flows from operations ($M) (2)  507,876 262,696 93%  1,350,645  597,689 126%
   Per share ($/basic share)  3.10  1.62 91%  8.25  3.72 122%
Net earnings (loss) ($M)  271,079  (147,130) N/A  917,654  804,108 14%
   Per share ($/basic share)  1.65  (0.91) N/A  5.61  5.00 12%
Cash flows from operating activities ($M)  447,608  211,548 112%  1,319,025  584,101 126%
Free cash flow ($M) (3)  323,861  196,246 65%  968,133  368,700 163%
Long-term debt ($M)  1,409,507  1,760,342 (20)%  1,409,507  1,760,342 (20)%
Net debt ($M) (4)  1,412,052  1,778,052 (21)%  1,412,052  1,778,052 (21)%

Activity   
Capital expenditures ($M) (5)  184,015  66,450 177%  382,512  228,989 67%
Acquisitions ($M) (6)  6,220  94,420  535,155  107,332 

(1) Please refer to Supplemental Table 4 "Production" for disclosure by product type.
(2) Fund flows from operations (FFO) and FFO per share are a total of segments measure and supplementary financial measure respectively most directly 

comparable to net earnings and net earnings per share, respectively. The measures do not have a standardized meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be 
comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. FFO is comprised of sales excluding royalties, transportation, operating, G&A, corporate income 
tax, PRRT, interest expense, and realized loss (gain) on derivatives, plus realized gain (loss) on foreign exchange and realized other income. The measure is 
used to assess the contribution of each business unit to Vermilion's ability to generate income necessary to pay dividends, repay debt, fund asset retirement 
obligations and make capital investments. A reconciliation to the primary financial statement measures can be found within the "Non-GAAP and Other Specified 
Financial Measures" section of this MD&A.

(3) Free cash flow (FCF) is a non-GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to cash flows from operating activities; it does not have a standardized 
meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. FCF is comprised of fund flows from operations less 
drilling and development costs and exploration and evaluation costs. The measure is used to determine the funding available for investing and financing 
activities including payment of dividends, repayment of long-term debt, reallocation into existing business units and deployment into new ventures. A 
reconciliation to  primary financial statement measures can be found within the "Non-GAAP and Other Specified Financial Measures" section of this MD&A. 

(4) Net debt is a capital management measure in accordance with IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and is most directly comparable to long-term debt. 
Net debt is comprised of long-term debt (excluding unrealized foreign exchange on swapped USD borrowings) plus adjusted working capital (defined as current 
assets less current liabilities, excluding current derivatives and current lease liabilities), and represents Vermilion's net financing obligations after adjusting for 
the timing of working capital fluctuations. Net debt excludes lease obligations which are secured by a corresponding right-of-use asset. A reconciliation to the 
primary financial statement measures can be found within the "Financial Position Review" section of this MD&A.

(5) Capital expenditures is a non-GAAP financial measure that does not have a standardized meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be comparable to similar 
measures presented by other issuers. The measure is calculated as the sum of drilling and development costs and exploration and evaluation costs from the 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We consider capital expenditures to be a useful measure of our investment in our existing asset base. Capital 
expenditures are also referred to as E&D capital. A reconciliation to the primary financial statement measures can be found within the "Non-GAAP and Other 
Specified Financial Measures" section of this MD&A.

(6) Acquisitions is a non-GAAP financial measure that does not have a standardized meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be comparable to similar 
measures presented by other issuers. The measure is calculated as the sum of acquisitions from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Vermilion 
common shares issued as consideration, the estimated value of contingent consideration, the amount of acquiree's outstanding long-term debt assumed plus or 
net of acquired working capital deficit or surplus. We believe that including these components provides a useful measure of the economic investment associated 
with our acquisition activity. A reconciliation to the acquisitions line item in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows can be found in "Supplemental Table 3: 
Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions" section of this MD&A.
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Financial performance review

Q3 2022 vs. Q3 2021 

"Other" contains equity based compensation, accretion, depletion & depreciation, and unrealized other

$M
M

Net earnings of $271.1MM in Q3 2022 compared to net loss of $147.1MM in Q3 2021

$(147.1)

$306.2

$245.2
$37.6

$(146.8) $(22.2) $(1.8)

$271.1

Q3 2021

Unrealized derivatives, 

foreign exchange Fund flows 

from operations

Depletion and depreciation
Deferred tax

Impairment reversal
Other

Q3 2022
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0

100
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• We recorded net earnings of $271.1 million ($1.65/basic share) for Q3 2022 compared to a net loss of $147.1 million ($0.91/basic share) in Q3 
2021. The increase in net earnings was due to comparatively lower unrealized derivative loss in Q3 2022 by $323.2 million and increased FFO 
driven by higher revenue on strong commodity prices. 

"Pricing net of derivatives" contains pricing variance on sales volumes (WTI, AECO, Dated Brent & TTF and NBP) and realized derivatives. 
"Sales volume" is the sum of sales volume variance in all regions. "Other" contains general and administration, interest, realized foreign 

exchange, and other realized income.

$M
M

Increased cash flows from operating activities and FFO driven by stronger commodity prices

$262.7

$395.2

$(49.7)
$(34.4)

$(33.4) $(21.9) $(10.6)

$507.9

$211.5

$447.6

Cash flows from operating activities
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Pricing net 
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• We generated cash flows from operating activities of $447.6 million in Q3 2022 compared to $211.5 million in Q3 2021 and fund flows from 
operations of $507.9 million in Q3 2022 compared to $262.7 million in Q3 2021. The increases were primarily due to higher commodity prices, 
which is reflected in our consolidated realized price per boe increasing from $68.19/boe in Q3 2021 to $127.39/boe in Q3 2022. This was 
partially offset by decreased sales volume, and increased current taxes and royalties driven by increased pricing. Variances between cash flows 
from operating activities and fund flows from operations are primarily driven by working capital timing differences.

YTD 2022 vs. YTD 2021

"Other" contains equity based compensation, accretion, and unrealized other

$M
M

Net earnings of $917.7MM in 2022 YTD compared to net earnings of $804.1MM in 2021 YTD
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$753.0

$379.5
$80.5 $18.3

$(1,086.6) $(17.2) $(13.9)
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YTD 2021
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Unrealized derivatives, foreign exchange
Deferred tax

Depletion and depreciation

Impairment reversal

Gain on business combinations Other
YTD 2022
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• For the nine months ended September 30, 2022, we recorded net earnings of $917.7 million compared to net earnings of $804.1 million for the 
comparable period in 2021. The increase in net earnings was primarily due higher fund flows from operations driven by increased consolidated 
realized pricing, reduced unrealized derivative losses of $344.5 million driven by the settlement of 2022 contracts (recognized in realized 
derivative losses), and deferred tax recoveries primarily due to increased forecast commodity prices resulting in the recognition of non-expiring 
tax loss pools in Ireland. This was partially offset by lower impairment reversals recorded in 2022 of $144.4 million (net of $47.7 million deferred 
income tax expense), compared to impairment reversals recorded in 2021 of $969.3 million (net of $309.4 million deferred income tax expense).
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"Pricing net of derivatives" contains pricing variance on sales volumes (WTI, AECO, Dated Brent & TTF and NBP) and realized derivatives. 
"Sales volume" is the sum of sales volume variance in all regions. "Other" contains general and administration, interest, realized foreign 

exchange, and other realized income.

$M
M

Cash flows from operating activities and funds flow from operations increased on stronger commodity prices

$597.7

$1,125.2

$(171.4)
$(161.6) $(29.5) $(9.8) $1,350.6

$584.1

$1,319.0

Cash flows from operating activities

2021 - FFO
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• Cash flows from operating activities increased by $734.9 million to $1,319.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022, and fund 
flows from operations increased by $753.0 million to $1,350.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the same period in 
2021. These increases were primarily driven by a 103% increase in our consolidated realized price from $56.58/boe to $114.76/boe. This was 
partially offset by an increase in taxes on higher income and sliding scale royalties on higher pricing. Variances between cash flows from 
operating activities and fund flows from operations are primarily driven by working capital timing differences.

Production review

Q3 2022 vs. Q3 2021
• Consolidated average production of 84,237 boe/d in Q3 2022 decreased slightly compared to Q3 2021 production of 84,633 boe/d. Production 

decreased in the Netherlands, France, and the United States due to natural decline. This was partially offset by an increase in Germany and 
Canada due to acquisitions in 2021 and 2022, respectively, as well as Australia primarily due to new wells coming online in September 2022.

YTD 2022 vs. YTD 2021
• Consolidated average production of 85,099 boe/d in the nine months ended September 30, 2022 decreased slightly from 85,742 boe/d in the 

prior year comparative period. Production decreased in the Netherlands, Canada, Australia, and Ireland primarily due to natural decline and was 
partially offset by an increase in Germany and the United States primarily due to 2021 acquisition activity.

Activity review

• For the three months ended September 30, 2022, capital expenditures of $184.0 million were incurred.
• In our North America core region, we incurred capital expenditures of $112.2 million. In Canada, capital expenditures totaled $83.3 million as we 

drilled 20 (15.0 net) wells, completed 18 (14.6 net) wells, and brought on production 14 (13.5 net) wells in south-east Saskatchewan, and  drilled 
two (1.1 net) Mannville liquids-rich gas wells and completed the wells on our first 6.0 (6.0 net) well Montney pad in Alberta. In the United States, 
$28.9 million was incurred primarily related to drilling and completing the remaining Turner locations as part of our planned six well program.

• In our International core region, capital expenditures of $71.8 million were incurred during Q3 2022. Our activities included $44.1 million 
incurred in Australia primarily related to our 2022 two-well drilling campaign and $9.6 million incurred in France on facilities and subsurface 
maintenance activities, along with various other costs associated with support work for our Q4 2022 drilling campaign in Europe.
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Financial sustainability review

Cash flows from operating activities and free cash flow
• Cash flows from operating activities increased by $734.9 million to $1,319.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 compared to 

the prior year period which was primarily driven by a 103% increase in consolidated realized prices.
• Free cash flow of $968.1 million increased by $599.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 compared to the prior year period 

which was primarily driven by an increase of fund flows from operations on higher realized prices, partially offset by higher expenditure on 
drilling and development activities.

Long-term debt and net debt
• Long-term debt decreased to $1.4 billion as at September 30, 2022 from $1.7 billion as at December 31, 2021 as a result of net repayments of 

$320.9 million, partially offset by borrowings made to fund the Leucrotta acquisition, as well as unrealized foreign exchange losses of $77.6 
million due the US dollar strengthening.  

• Net debt at September 30, 2022 decreased to $1.4 billion from $1.6 billion at December 31, 2021 primarily due to net decreases in long-term 
debt, partially offset by timing of working capital movements.

• The ratio of net debt to four quarter trailing fund flows from operations(1) decreased to 0.8 as at September 30, 2022 (December 31, 2021 - 1.8) 
primarily due to higher four quarter trailing fund flows from operations.

(1) Net debt to four quarter trailing fund flows from operations is a supplementary financial measure that does not have a standardized meaning under IFRS and 
therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. It is calculated as net debt (capital measure) over the FFO from the preceding 
4 quarters (total of segments measure). The measure is used to assess our ability to repay debt.
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Benchmark Commodity Prices

 Q3 2022 Q3 2021
Q3/22 vs. 

Q3/21 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
2022 vs. 

2021
Crude oil

WTI ($/bbl)  119.59  88.90 35%  125.83  81.14 55%
WTI (US $/bbl)  91.56  70.56 30%  98.09  64.82 51%
Edmonton Sweet index ($/bbl)  116.92  83.77 40%  123.47  75.95 63%
Edmonton Sweet index (US $/bbl)  89.52  66.49 35%  96.25  60.68 59%
Saskatchewan LSB index ($/bbl)  115.02  83.59 38%  122.01  75.89 61%
Saskatchewan LSB index (US $/bbl)  88.06  66.35 33%  95.11  60.63 57%
Canadian C5+ Condensate index ($/bbl)  113.75  87.25 30%  124.65  80.81 54%
Canadian C5+ Condensate index (US $/bbl)  87.09  69.25 26%  97.17  64.56 51%
Dated Brent ($/bbl)  131.72  92.56 42%  135.14  84.78 59%
Dated Brent (US $/bbl)  100.85  73.47 37%  105.35  67.73 56%

Natural gas
North America
AECO 5A ($/mcf)  4.16  3.60 16%  5.38  3.28 64%
Henry Hub ($/mcf)  10.72  5.05 112%  8.72  3.98 119%
Henry Hub (US $/mcf)  8.21  4.01 105%  6.80  3.18 114%
Europe(1)

NBP Day Ahead ($/mmbtu)  42.28  20.21 109%  33.65  13.32 153%
NBP Month Ahead ($/mmbtu)  53.91  21.20 154%  40.76  13.54 201%
NBP Day Ahead (€/mmbtu)  32.18  13.61 136%  24.67  8.89 178%
NBP Month Ahead (€/mmbtu)  41.02  14.27 188%  29.88  9.04 231%
TTF Day Ahead ($/mmbtu)  75.56  20.65 266%  51.64  13.27 289%
TTF Month Ahead ($/mmbtu)  77.79  21.17 268%  53.46  13.45 298%
TTF Day Ahead (€/mmbtu)  57.50  13.91 313%  37.85  8.86 327%
TTF Month Ahead (€/mmbtu)  59.20  14.26 315%  39.18  8.98 336%

Average exchange rates
CDN $/US $  1.31  1.26 4%  1.28  1.25 2%
CDN $/Euro  1.31  1.49 (12)%  1.36  1.50 (9)%
Realized prices
Crude oil and condensate ($/bbl)  123.02  87.05 41%  127.34  79.40 60%
NGLs ($/bbl)  44.64  35.55 26%  47.82  30.03 59%
Natural gas ($/mcf)  24.68  9.20 168%  19.50  6.63 194%
Total ($/boe)  127.39  68.19 87%  114.76  56.58 103%

(1) NBP and TTF pricing can occur on a day-ahead ("DA") or month-ahead ("MA") basis. DA prices in a period reflect the average current day settled price on the next 
days' delivery and MA prices in a period represent daily one month futures contract prices which are determined at the end of each month. In a rising price 
environment, the DA price will tend to be greater than the MA price and vice versa. Natural gas in the Netherlands and Germany is benchmarked to the TTF and 
production is generally equally split between DA and MA contracts. Natural gas in Ireland is benchmarked to the NBP and is sold on DA contracts.

As an internationally diversified producer, we are exposed to a range of commodity prices. In our North America core region, our crude oil is sold at 
benchmarks linked to WTI (including the Edmonton Sweet index, the Saskatchewan LSB index, and the Canadian C5+ index) and our natural gas is 
sold at benchmarks linked to the AECO index (in Canada) or the Henry Hub index (in the United States). In our International core region, our crude 
oil is sold with reference to Dated Brent and our natural gas is sold with reference to NBP, TTF, or indices highly correlated to TTF.
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Q3 2022 realized crude oil and condensate price was a $6.10/bbl premium to Edmonton Sweet Index
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• Crude oil prices increased in Q3 2022 relative to Q3 2021. Global crude fundamentals continued to signal a tight physical market with 
limited spare capacity and continued geopolitical supply risks and disruptions. Year-over-year, Canadian dollar WTI and Brent prices rose 
35% and 42%, respectively.

• In Canadian dollar terms, year-over-year, the Edmonton Sweet differential narrowed by $2.46/bbl to a discount of $2.67/bbl against WTI, 
and the Saskatchewan LSB differential narrowed by $0.74/bbl to a discount of $4.57/bbl against WTI.

• Approximately 32% of Vermilion’s Q3 2022 crude oil and condensate production was priced at the Dated Brent index (which averaged a 
premium to WTI of US$9.29/bbl), while the remainder of our crude oil and condensate production was priced at the Saskatchewan LSB, 
Canadian C5+, Edmonton Sweet, and WTI indices.
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Q3 2022 realized natural gas price was a $20.56/mcf premium to AECO
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• In Canadian dollar terms, year-over-year, prices for European natural gas linked to NBP and TTF rose by 109% and 266%, respectively on 
a day-ahead basis and 154% and 268% respectively on a month-ahead basis. Further Russian pipeline supply decreases combined with 
strong natural gas power demand, and elevated European power and coal prices supported higher European gas prices. 

• Natural gas prices in Canadian dollar terms at AECO and NYMEX HH increased by 14% and 112%, respectively, in Q3 2022 compared to 
Q3 2021. NYMEX prices benefited from below average inventories driven by strong LNG export demand, record power demand from 
above average cooling degree days, and limited production growth in Q3 2022. AECO year-over-year price increase was limited compared 
to NYMEX as basis widened on high WCSB production growth and NGTL maintenance impacts which helped to bring storage levels back 
to within their 5 year range levels.

• For Q3 2022, average European natural gas prices represented a $58.23/mcf premium to AECO. Approximately 35% of our natural gas 
production in Q3 2022 benefited from this premium European pricing.
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The Canadian dollar strengthened slightly versus the Euro and weakened slightly versus the US Dollar in 
Q3 2022 compared to Q3 2021

CDN $/Euro

CDN $/US $

Q3 2021 Q4 2021 Q1 2022 Q2 2022 Q3 2022
1.20

1.30

1.40

1.50

1.60

• For the three months ended September 30, 2022, the Canadian dollar strengthened 12% against the Euro compared to Q3 2021.
• For the three months ended September 30, 2022, the Canadian dollar weakened 4% against the US Dollar compared to Q3 2021.
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North America
Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Production (1)

Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  23,898  24,757  24,091  24,573 
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,068  8,117  8,279 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  152.07  145.18  150.30  147.20 
Total production volume (boe/d)  57,142  57,022  57,259  57,386 

(1) Please refer to Supplemental Table 4 "Production" for disclosure by product type.

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

Sales  374,533  71.24  264,393  50.40  1,150,222  73.58  709,136  45.26 
Royalties  (66,149)  (12.58)  (37,444)  (7.14)  (189,487)  (12.12)  (97,279)  (6.21) 
Transportation  (11,372)  (2.16)  (10,085)  (1.92)  (32,453)  (2.08)  (30,653)  (1.96) 
Operating  (73,583)  (14.00)  (57,834)  (11.02)  (195,577)  (12.51)  (172,945)  (11.04) 
General and administration (1)  (6,696)  (1.27)  (5,990)  (1.14)  (21,164)  (1.35)  (17,663)  (1.13) 
Corporate income tax expense (1)  (154)  (0.03)  (276)  (0.05)  (299)  (0.02)  (689)  (0.04) 
Fund flows from operations  216,579  41.20  152,764  29.13  711,242  45.50  389,907  24.88 
Drilling and development  (112,238)  (35,179)  (224,664)  (133,139) 
Free cash flow  104,341  117,585  486,578  256,768 

(1) Includes amounts from Corporate segment.

Production from our North American operations averaged 57,142 boe/d in Q3 2022, a decrease of 2% from the prior quarter primarily due to third-
party downtime in Canada and delayed start-up of our Turner wells in the United States. During the third quarter, we drilled 20 (15.0 net) wells, 
completed 18 (14.6 net) wells, and brought on production 14 (13.5 net) wells in south-east Saskatchewan. In Alberta, we drilled two (1.1 net) 
Mannville liquids rich gas wells and completed the six (6.0 net) wells on our first Montney pad at Mica which were drilled in Q2 2022. 

In the United States, we drilled the remaining one (1.0 net) well of our planned six (5.8 net) operated Turner program, and completed and brought on 
production the remaining five (4.8 net) wells of the six (5.8 net) well Turner program during the third quarter. In addition, two (0.4 net) non-operated 
commitment Parkman wells were drilled and brought on production as part of a farmout agreement. 

Sales

$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe
Canada  332,918  69.48  228,519  48.54  1,028,387  72.10  631,175  43.85 
United States  41,615  89.36  35,874  66.61  121,835  89.00  77,961  61.29 
North America  374,533  71.24  264,393  50.40  1,150,222  73.58  709,136  45.26 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Sales in North America increased on a dollar and per unit basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the comparable 
prior periods due to significantly higher realized prices across all products offset by a slight decline in production volumes.
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Royalties

$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe
Canada  (54,919)  (11.46)  (27,812)  (5.91)  (157,258)  (11.03)  (76,587)  (5.32) 
United States  (11,230)  (24.11)  (9,632)  (17.89)  (32,229)  (23.54)  (20,692)  (16.27) 
North America  (66,149)  (12.58)  (37,444)  (7.14)  (189,487)  (12.12)  (97,279)  (6.21) 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Royalties in North America increased on a dollar and per unit basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the comparable 
prior periods primarily due to increased sliding scale royalties driven by higher commodity prices. Royalties as a percentage of sales for the three 
and nine months ended September 30, 2022 of 17.7% and 16.5%, respectively, increased versus the comparable prior periods primarily due to the 
effect of higher commodity prices on sliding scale royalties.

Transportation

$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe
Canada  (11,299)  (2.36)  (9,526)  (2.02)  (31,930)  (2.24)  (29,630)  (2.06) 
United States  (73)  (0.16)  (559)  (1.04)  (523)  (0.38)  (1,023)  (0.80) 
North America  (11,372)  (2.16)  (10,085)  (1.92)  (32,453)  (2.08)  (30,653)  (1.96) 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Transportation expense in North America increased on a dollar and per boe basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus 
the comparable prior period primarily due to increased tariffs in Saskatchewan beginning in mid-2022.  

Operating expense

$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe
Canada  (66,245)  (13.83)  (53,076)  (11.27)  (177,594)  (12.45)  (160,683)  (11.16) 
United States  (7,338)  (15.76)  (4,758)  (8.84)  (17,983)  (13.14)  (12,262)  (9.64) 
North America  (73,583)  (14.00)  (57,834)  (11.02)  (195,577)  (12.51)  (172,945)  (11.04) 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Operating expenses in North America for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 increased on a dollar basis and per boe basis 
versus the comparable periods. In Canada, increases in the three months ended September 30, 2022 were primarily the result of an increase in 
processing fees due to the addition of Mica assets and higher plant rates in Saskatchewan. Increases in the nine months ended September 30, 2022 
were primarily the result of acquisition activity, planned maintenance, and inflationary pressure. In the United States, increases in the three months 
ended September 30, 2022 were primarily timing of maintenance and inflationary pressures. Increases in the nine months ended September 30, 
2022 were primarily due to increased downhole costs and maintenance activities.
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International
Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Production (1)

Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  13,419  14,020  12,973  14,203 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  82.05  81.55  89.21  84.92 
Total production volume (boe/d)  27,095  27,612  27,840  28,356 
Total sales volume (boe/d)  25,169  28,820  26,807  27,669 

(1) Please refer to Supplemental Table 4 "Production" for disclosure by product type.

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

Sales  590,145  254.86  274,137  103.39  1,483,479  202.71  604,710  80.06 
Royalties  (16,705)  (7.21)  (11,991)  (4.52)  (48,227)  (6.59)  (30,058)  (3.98) 
Transportation  (8,126)  (3.51)  (9,188)  (3.47)  (24,467)  (3.34)  (27,475)  (3.64) 
Operating  (52,404)  (22.63)  (46,521)  (17.55)  (157,210)  (21.48)  (127,388)  (16.86) 
General and administration  (7,726)  (3.34)  (6,351)  (2.40)  (23,169)  (3.17)  (17,840)  (2.36) 
Corporate income tax (expense) recovery  (50,868)  (21.97)  1,690  0.64  (165,896)  (22.67)  2,757  0.36 
PRRT  (4,545)  (1.96)  (7,271)  (2.74)  (13,273)  (1.81)  (10,144)  (1.34) 
Fund flows from operations  449,771  194.24  194,505  73.35  1,051,237  143.65  394,562  52.24 
Drilling and development  (65,640)  (27,994)  (145,543)  (87,249) 
Exploration and evaluation  (6,137)  (3,277)  (12,305)  (8,601) 
Free cash flow  377,994  163,234  893,389  298,712 

Production from our International operations averaged 27,095 boe/d in Q3 2022, an increase of 1% from the prior quarter. Production increased in 
Australia following the completion of our two-well drilling program in the third quarter, and in Germany, due to the successful results from our 1H 
2022 drilling program and various workovers completed during the third quarter. During the quarter, three wells were drilled in Hungary, but none of 
the wells encountered commercial hydrocarbons. Elsewhere in Europe, we continued with support work for our Q4 2022 drilling campaign which will 
include one (0.5 net) well in Netherlands, one (1.0 net) well in Germany, and two (2.0 net) wells in Croatia.

Sales

$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe
Australia  39,220  155.29  44,044  105.17  125,767  155.05  102,682  99.77 
France  90,825  135.49  79,817  91.60  287,521  137.00  199,454  84.11 
Netherlands  185,296  408.30  69,247  104.68  443,189  279.36  130,353  69.67 
Germany  168,812  315.78  32,943  94.41  360,249  236.15  66,312  69.97 
Ireland  102,286  259.18  47,817  137.58  259,592  204.06  105,073  79.75 
Central and Eastern Europe  3,706  387.33  269  81.22  7,161  294.73  836  49.39 
International 590,145  254.86 274,137  103.39 1,483,479  202.71 604,710  80.06 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021

As a result of changes in inventory levels, our sales volumes for crude oil in Australia, France, and Germany may differ from our production volumes 
in those business units. The following table provides the crude oil sales volumes (consisting entirely of "light crude oil and medium crude oil") for 
those jurisdictions.

Crude oil sales volumes (bbls/d) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Australia  2,745  4,552  2,971  3,770 
France  7,286  9,471  7,688  8,687 
Germany  1,388  1,094  1,208  959 
International  11,419  15,117  11,867  13,416 

Sales increased on a dollar and per boe basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable periods 
due to higher realized prices across all business units. These increases were partially offset by lower sales volumes across multiple business units 
due to natural decline combined with the timing of liftings in Australia and France.
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Royalties

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

France  (10,402)  (15.52)  (11,089)  (12.73)  (31,059)  (14.80)  (27,492)  (11.59) 
Netherlands  —  —  (229)  (0.35)  —  —  (454)  (0.24) 
Germany  (4,713)  (8.82)  (616)  (1.77)  (14,829)  (9.72)  (1,938)  (2.05) 
Central and Eastern Europe  (1,590)  (166.18)  (57)  (17.21)  (2,339)  (96.27)  (174)  (10.28) 
International  (16,705)  (7.21)  (11,991)  (4.52)  (48,227)  (6.59)  (30,058)  (3.98) 

Royalties in our International core region are primarily incurred in France, where royalties include charges based on a percentage of sales and fixed 
per boe charges. Our production in Australia and Ireland is not subject to royalties.
Royalties increased on a dollar and per unit basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the comparable prior year 
periods primarily due to higher sales prices combined with an increase in royalty rates in Germany and Central and Eastern Europe, partially offset 
by lower sales volumes in France.
Royalties as a percentage of sales for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 of 2.8% and 3.3% decreased versus the prior year 
comparable periods of 4.4% and 5.0% primarily due to higher sales in business units that are not subject to royalties combined with the impact of 
RCDM royalties in France, which are levied on units of production and not subject to changes in commodity prices. This was partially offset by an 
increase in royalty rates in Germany and Central and Eastern Europe.

Transportation

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

France  (4,877)  (7.28)  (6,400)  (7.34)  (15,511)  (7.39)  (19,923)  (8.40) 
Germany  (2,342)  (4.38)  (1,708)  (4.89)  (6,130)  (4.02)  (4,283)  (4.52) 
Ireland  (907)  (2.30)  (1,080)  (3.11)  (2,826)  (2.22)  (3,269)  (2.48) 
International  (8,126)  (3.51)  (9,188)  (3.47)  (24,467)  (3.34)  (27,475)  (3.64) 

Transportation expense decreased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the comparable prior year periods primarily due 
to the volume of liftings in France, partially offset by 2021 acquisition activity in Germany resulting in higher volumes produced and sold requiring 
transportation in this region. On a per unit basis, transportation expense remained relatively flat versus prior year comparable periods.
Our production in Australia, Netherlands and Central and Eastern Europe is not subject to transportation expense.

Operating expense

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

Australia  (10,349)  (40.98)  (14,684)  (35.06)  (36,187)  (44.61)  (34,830)  (33.84) 
France  (14,461)  (21.57)  (13,523)  (15.52)  (44,950)  (21.42)  (37,905)  (15.98) 
Netherlands  (13,200)  (29.09)  (8,514)  (12.87)  (34,674)  (21.86)  (23,820)  (12.73) 
Germany  (9,188)  (17.19)  (6,717)  (19.25)  (28,231)  (18.51)  (19,826)  (20.92) 
Ireland  (4,715)  (11.95)  (2,968)  (8.54)  (11,893)  (9.35)  (10,782)  (8.18) 
Central and Eastern Europe  (491)  (51.32)  (115)  (34.72)  (1,275)  (52.48)  (225)  (13.29) 
International (52,404)  (22.63) (46,521)  (17.55) (157,210)  (21.48) (127,388)  (16.86) 

For the three months ended September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable period, operating expense increased on a dollar and per boe 
basis primarily due to the impact of higher fuel and electricity prices in Europe, partially offset by a deferral of costs in Australia due to an inventory 
build. Operating expense increased on a dollar and per boe basis for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable 
period primarily due to the impact of higher fuel and electricity prices in Europe. 
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Consolidated Financial Performance Review
Financial performance 

Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

Sales  964,678  127.39  538,530  68.19  2,633,701  114.76  1,313,846  56.58 
Royalties  (82,854)  (10.94)  (49,435)  (6.26)  (237,714)  (10.36)  (127,337)  (5.48) 
Transportation  (19,498)  (2.57)  (19,273)  (2.44)  (56,920)  (2.48)  (58,128)  (2.50) 
Operating  (125,987)  (16.64)  (104,355)  (13.21)  (352,787)  (15.37)  (300,333)  (12.93) 
General and administration  (14,422)  (1.90)  (12,341)  (1.56)  (44,333)  (1.93)  (35,503)  (1.53) 
Corporate income tax (expense) recovery  (51,022)  (6.74)  1,414  0.18  (166,195)  (7.24)  2,068  0.09 
PRRT  (4,545)  (0.60)  (7,271)  (0.92)  (13,273)  (0.58)  (10,144)  (0.44) 
Interest expense  (24,455)  (3.23)  (18,699)  (2.37)  (60,352)  (2.63)  (56,796)  (2.45) 
Realized loss on derivatives  (137,953)  (18.22)  (72,579)  (9.19)  (361,954)  (15.77)  (137,786)  (5.93) 
Realized foreign exchange (loss) gain  (2,103)  (0.28)  2,921  0.37  (3,650)  (0.16)  (4,218)  (0.18) 
Realized other income  6,037  0.80  3,784  0.48  14,122  0.62  12,020  0.52 
Fund flows from operations  507,876  67.07  262,696  33.27  1,350,645  58.86  597,689  25.75 
Equity based compensation  (6,145)  (7,823)  (39,013)  (34,899) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative 
instruments (1)  43,844  (279,393)  (8,892)  (353,359) 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (1)  (44,929)  (27,877)  (37,059)  (72,085) 
Accretion  (14,285)  (11,199)  (41,669)  (32,569) 
Depletion and depreciation  (130,205)  (167,808)  (405,208)  (423,472) 
Deferred tax (expense) recovery  (84,570)  62,245  (91,974)  (172,509) 
Gain on business combinations  —  —  —  17,198 
Impairment reversal  —  22,225  192,094  1,278,697 
Unrealized other expense (1)  (507)  (196)  (1,270)  (583) 
Net earnings (loss)  271,079  (147,130)  917,654  804,108 

(1) Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments, Unrealized foreign exchange loss, and Unrealized other expense are line items from the respective 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Fluctuations in fund flows from operations may occur as a result of changes in production levels, commodity prices, and costs to produce petroleum 
and natural gas. In addition, fund flows from operations may be affected by the timing of crude oil shipments in Australia and France. When crude oil 
inventory is built up, the related operating expense, royalties, and depletion expense are deferred and carried as inventory on the consolidated 
balance sheet. When the crude oil inventory is subsequently drawn down, the related expenses are recognized within profit or loss. 

General and administration
• General and administration expense increased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable 

periods primarily due to higher legal, tax, and financial advisory costs.

PRRT and corporate income taxes
• PRRT decreased for the three months ended September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable period primarily due to lower sales 

combined with higher capital expenditures in the current period. PRRT increased for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 versus 
the prior year comparable period due to higher sales partially offset by higher capital expenditures in the current period.

• Corporate income taxes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 increased versus the prior year comparable period 
primarily due to higher taxable income as a result of increased commodity prices in 2022.

Interest expense
• Interest expense increased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 compared to the prior year despite lower debt levels. 

This was due to higher variable interest rates and an increase in the percentage of our debt with fixed interest rates following the issuance 
of the 2030 senior unsecured notes. 
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Realized gain or loss on derivatives
• For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, we recorded realized losses on our crude oil and natural gas hedges due to 

higher commodity pricing compared to the strike prices on our hedges.
• A listing of derivative positions as at September 30, 2022 is included in “Supplemental Table 2” of this MD&A.

Realized other income
• Realized other income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 primarily relates to amounts for funding under the 

Saskatchewan Accelerated Site Closure program to complete abandonment and reclamation on inactive oil and gas wells and facilities.

Net earnings

Fluctuations in net earnings from period-to-period are caused by changes in both cash and non-cash based income and charges. Cash based items 
are reflected in fund flows from operations. Non-cash items include: equity based compensation expense, unrealized gains and losses on derivative 
instruments, unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses, accretion, depletion and depreciation expense, and deferred taxes. In addition, non-cash 
items may also include gains resulting from business combinations or charges resulting from impairment or impairment reversals.

Equity based compensation
Equity based compensation expense relates primarily to non-cash compensation expense attributable to long-term incentives granted to directors, 
officers, and employees under security-based arrangements. Equity based compensation expense decreased for the three months ended 
September 30, 2022 versus the prior year comparable period primarily due to the lower value of VIP awards outstanding in the current period. For 
the nine months ended September 30, 2022, equity based compensation expense increased primarily due to higher bonuses under the employee 
bonus plan in the current year.

Unrealized gain or loss on derivative instruments
Unrealized gain or loss on derivative instruments arises as a result of changes in forecasts for future prices and rates. As Vermilion uses derivative 
instruments to manage the commodity price exposure of our future crude oil and natural gas production, we will normally recognize unrealized gains 
on derivative instruments when future commodity price forecasts decline and vice-versa. As derivative instruments are settled, the unrealized gain or 
loss previously recognized is reversed, and the settlement results in a realized gain or loss on derivative instruments. 

USD-to-CAD cross currency interest rate swaps and foreign exchange swaps may be entered into to hedge the foreign exchange movements on 
USD borrowings on our revolving credit facility. As such, unrealized gains and losses on our cross currency interest swaps are offset by unrealized 
losses and gains on foreign exchange relating to the underlying USD borrowings from our revolving credit facility.

For the three months ended September 30, 2022, we recognized a net unrealized gain on derivative instruments of $43.8 million. This consists of 
unrealized gains of $37.5 million on our crude oil commodity derivative instruments, $19.0 million on our equity swaps,  $15.7 million on our USD-to-
CAD foreign exchange swaps, and $2.8 million on our North American natural gas commodity derivative instruments, partially offset by unrealized 
losses of $31.2 million on our European natural gas commodity derivative instruments .

For the nine months ended September 30, 2022, we recognized a net unrealized loss on derivative instruments of $8.9 million. This consists of 
unrealized losses of $64.3 million on our European natural gas commodity derivative instruments and $5.3 million on our North American natural gas 
commodity derivative instruments, partially offset by unrealized gains of $51.4 million on our equity swaps, $5.7 million on our crude oil commodity 
derivative instruments, and $3.6 million on our USD-to-CAD foreign exchange swaps.

Unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses
As a result of Vermilion’s international operations, Vermilion has monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Canadian 
dollar. These monetary assets and liabilities include cash, receivables, payables, long-term debt, derivative instruments and intercompany loans. 
Unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses result from translating these monetary assets and liabilities from their underlying currency to the 
Canadian dollar.

In 2022, unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses primarily resulted from:
• The translation of Euro denominated intercompany loans from our international subsidiaries to Vermilion Energy Inc.. An appreciation in the 

Euro against the Canadian dollar will result in an unrealized foreign exchange loss (and vice-versa). Under IFRS, the offsetting foreign 
exchange loss or gain is recorded as a currency translation adjustment within other comprehensive income. As a result, consolidated 
comprehensive income reflects the offsetting of these translation adjustments while net earnings reflects only the parent company's side of the 
translation.
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• The translation of USD borrowings on our revolving credit facility. The unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses on these borrowings are 
offset by unrealized derivative gains or losses on associated USD-to-CAD cross currency interest rate swaps (discussed further below).

• The translation of our USD denominated senior unsecured notes prior to June 12, 2019 and from May 5, 2020 onward. During the period 
between June 12, 2019 and May 5, 2020 the USD senior notes were hedged by a USD-to-CAD cross currency interest rate swap. Subsequent 
to the termination of these instruments, amounts previously recognized in the hedge accounting reserve will be recognized into earnings 
through unrealized foreign exchange loss over the period of the hedged cash flows.

For the three months ended September 30, 2022, we recognized a net unrealized foreign exchange loss of $44.9 million, driven by an unrealized 
loss of $56.6 million on our senior unsecured notes resulting from the US dollar strengthening 6.4% against the Canadian dollar in Q3 2022,  as well 
as unrealized losses of $12.0 million on our USD borrowings from our revolving credit facility. This was partially offset by an unrealized gain of $23.3 
million on intercompany loans due to the Euro weakening 0.6% against the Canadian dollar in Q3 2022.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2022, we recognized a net unrealized foreign exchange loss of $37.1 million, driven by an unrealized loss 
of $66.2 million on our senior unsecured notes resulting from the US dollar strengthening 8.1% against the Canadian dollar in 2022,  as well as 
unrealized losses of $11.3 million on our USD borrowings from our revolving credit facility. This was partially offset by unrealized gains of $46.4 
million on intercompany loans due to the Euro weakening 7.0% against the Canadian dollar in 2022.

As at September 30, 2022, a $0.01 appreciation of the Euro against the Canadian dollar would result in a $7.3 million decrease to net earnings as a 
result of an unrealized loss on foreign exchange, while a $0.01 appreciation of the US dollar against the Canadian dollar would result in a $5.6 
million decrease to net earnings as a result of an unrealized loss on foreign exchange.

Accretion
Accretion expense is recognized to update the present value of the asset retirement obligation balance. For the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2022, accretion expense increased versus the comparable period primarily due to the impact of a higher asset retirement obligation 
balance at the end of 2021 compared to 2020, partially offset by the weakening of the Euro against the Canadian dollar.

Depletion and depreciation
Depletion and depreciation expense is recognized to allocate the cost of capital assets over the useful life of the respective assets. Depletion and 
depreciation expense per unit of production is determined for each depletion unit (which are groups of assets within a specific production area that 
have similar economic lives) by dividing the sum of the net book value of capital assets and future development costs by total proved plus probable 
reserves.

Fluctuations in depletion and depreciation expense are primarily the result of changes in produced crude oil and natural gas volumes, and changes 
in depletion and depreciation per unit. Fluctuations in depletion and depreciation per unit are the result of changes in reserves, depletable base (net 
book value of capital assets and future development costs), and relative production mix.

Depletion and depreciation on a per boe basis for the three months ended September 30, 2022 of $17.19 decreased from $21.25 in the comparable 
prior year period primarily due to lower downhole depreciation and inventory movement, as well as the weakening of the Euro against the Canadian 
dollar.

Depletion and depreciation on a per boe basis for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 of $17.66 decreased from $18.24 in the comparable 
prior year period primarily due to lower downhole depreciation and exploration and evaluation write-offs, as well as the weakening of the Euro 
against the Canadian dollar. This was partially offset by a higher depletable base due to impairment reversals in Q1 2022 and throughout 2021, as 
well net increases in asset retirement obligation assets recorded in 2021 and 2022.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets arise when the tax basis of an asset exceeds its accounting basis (known as a deductible temporary difference). Conversely, 
deferred tax liabilities arise when the tax basis of an asset is less than its accounting basis (known as a taxable temporary difference). Deferred tax 
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that there are future taxable profits against which the deductible temporary difference can 
be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rate that is expected to apply when the asset 
is realized, or the liability is settled.

As such, fluctuations in deferred tax expenses and recoveries primarily arise as a result of: changes in the accounting basis of an asset or liability 
without a corresponding tax basis change (e.g. when derivative assets and liabilities are marked-to-market or when accounting depletion differs from 
tax depletion), changes in available tax losses (e.g. if they are utilized to offset taxable income), changes in estimated future taxable profits resulting 
in a derecognition or recognition of deferred tax assets, and changes in enacted or substantively enacted tax rates.
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For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company recorded a deferred tax expense of $84.6 million and $92.0 million 
compared to a deferred tax recovery of $62.2 million and deferred tax expense $172.5 million for the prior year comparable periods. The deferred tax 
expense for the three months ended September 30, 2022 is primarily due to loss utilization on increased taxable income in Ireland, Germany and 
Canada, as well as the tax impact on unrealized derivative movement. The deferred tax expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 is 
primarily due to loss utilization on increased taxable income in Ireland, Germany and Canada, and partially offset by the recognition of tax assets in 
Ireland in the first quarter of 2022.

Impairment
Impairment losses or reversals of losses are recognized when indicators of impairment or impairment reversal arise and the carrying amount of a 
cash generating unit ("CGU") is greater than (impairment) or less than (impairment reversal) its recoverable amount, determined as the higher of fair 
value less costs of disposal or value-in-use. In the third quarter of 2022 there were no indicators of impairment and no amounts relating to previous 
impairments remaining to be reversed.

In the first quarter of 2022, indicators of impairment reversal were present in our Canada - Saskatchewan and France - Neocomian CGUs due to an 
increase in forecast oil prices. As a result of the indicators of impairment reversal, the Company performed impairment reversal calculations on the 
identified CGUs and the recoverable amounts were determined using fair value less costs to sell, which considered future after-tax cash flows from 
proved plus probable reserves and an after-tax discount rate of 12.0%. Based on the results of the impairment reversal calculations completed, 
recoverable amounts were determined to be greater than the carrying values of the CGUs tested and $144.4 million (net of $47.7 million deferred 
income tax expense) of impairment reversal was recorded.

Inputs used in the measurement of capital assets are not based on observable market data and fall within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Financial Position Review

Balance sheet strategy

We regularly review whether our forecast of fund flows from operations is sufficient to finance planned capital expenditures, dividends, share buy-
backs, and abandonment and reclamation expenditures. To the extent that fund flows from operations forecasts are not expected to be sufficient to 
fulfill such expenditures, we will evaluate our ability to finance any shortfall by reducing some or all categories of expenditures, with issuances of 
equity, and/or with debt (including borrowing using the unutilized capacity of our existing revolving credit facility). We have a long-term goal of 
achieving and maintaining a ratio of net debt to fund flows from operations of approximately 1.0. 

As at September 30, 2022, we have a ratio of net debt to fund flows from operations of 0.8. We will continue to monitor for changes in forecasted 
fund flows from operations and, as appropriate, will adjust our exploration, development capital plans (and associated production targets), and return 
of capital plans to target optimal debt levels. 

Maintaining a strong balance sheet is a core principle of Vermilion and will remain a focus going forward. As debt reduction continues, we will plan to 
increase the amount of free cash flow that is available for the return of capital, while taking into account other capital requirements. 

Net debt

Net debt is reconciled to long-term debt, as follows: 

 As at
($M) Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Long-term debt  1,409,507  1,651,569 
Adjusted working capital deficit  (1)  22,212  9,284 
Unrealized FX on swapped USD borrowings  (19,667)  (16,067) 
Net debt  1,412,052  1,644,786 
   
Ratio of net debt to four quarter trailing fund flows from operations  0.8  1.8 

(1) Adjusted working capital is a non-GAAP financial measure that is not standardized under IFRS and may not be comparable to similar measures disclosed by 
other issuers. It is defined as current assets less current liabilities, excluding current derivatives and current lease liabilities. The measure is used to calculate 
net debt, a capital measure disclosed above. Reconciliation to the primary financial statement measures can be found in the “Non-GAAP and Other Specified 
Financial Measures” section of this document. 

As at September 30, 2022, net debt decreased to $1.4 billion (December 31, 2021 - $1.6 billion), primarily as a result of debt repayments of $819.9 
million, funded by the $968.1 million of free cash flow generated during 2022. This was partially offset by borrowings made to fund the Leucrotta 
acquisition, unrealized foreign exchange losses of $77.6 million on our senior unsecured notes due to the US dollar strengthening, and working 
capital movements. The ratio of net debt to four quarter trailing fund flows from operations decreased to 0.8 (December 31, 2021 - 1.8) due to higher 
four quarter trailing fund flows from operations, driven by strong commodity prices.

Long-term debt

The balances recognized on our balance sheet are as follows:

 As at
Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021

Revolving credit facility  465,153  1,273,755 
2025 senior unsecured notes  409,118  377,814 
2030 senior unsecured notes  535,236  — 
Long-term debt  1,409,507  1,651,569 
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Revolving Credit Facility

As at September 30, 2022, Vermilion had in place a bank revolving credit facility maturing May 29, 2026 with terms and outstanding positions as 
follows:

 As at
($M) Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Total facility amount  1,600,000  2,100,000 
Amount drawn  (465,153)  (1,273,755) 
Letters of credit outstanding  (13,352)  (11,035) 
Unutilized capacity  1,121,495  815,210 

On April 26, 2022, contemporaneous with the issuance of the 2030 senior unsecured notes and at Vermilion's election, the maturity date of the 
facility was extended to May 29, 2026 (previously May 31, 2024) and the total facility amount was reduced to $1.6 billion (previously $2.1 billion).

As at September 30, 2022, the revolving credit facility was subject to the following financial covenants: 

  As at
Financial covenant Limit Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA Less than 4.0  0.72  1.61 
Consolidated total senior debt to consolidated EBITDA Less than 3.5  0.23  1.24 
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense Greater than 2.5  26.65  14.78 

Our financial covenants include financial measures defined within our revolving credit facility agreement that are not defined under IFRS. These 
financial measures are defined by our revolving credit facility agreement as follows:
• Consolidated total debt: Includes all amounts classified as “Long-term debt”, “Current portion of long-term debt”, and “Lease 

obligations” (including the current portion included within "Accounts payable and accrued liabilities" but excluding operating leases as defined 
under IAS 17) on our consolidated balance sheet.

• Consolidated total senior debt: Consolidated total debt excluding unsecured and subordinated debt.
• Consolidated EBITDA: Consolidated net earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation, accretion and certain other non-cash items, 

adjusted for the impact of the acquisition of a material subsidiary.
• Total interest expense: Includes all amounts classified as "Interest expense", but excludes interest on operating leases as defined under IAS 17.

In addition, our revolving credit facility has provisions relating to our liability management ratings in Alberta and Saskatchewan whereby if our 
security adjusted liability management ratings fall below specified limits in a province, a portion of the asset retirement obligations are included in the 
definitions of consolidated total debt and consolidated total senior debt. An event of default occurs if our security adjusted liability management 
ratings breach additional lower limits for a period greater than 90 days. As of September 30, 2022, Vermilion's liability management ratings were 
higher than the specified levels, and as such, no amounts relating to asset retirement obligations were included in the calculation of consolidated 
total debt and consolidated total senior debt.

As at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, Vermilion was in compliance with the above covenants.

2025 senior unsecured notes

On March 13, 2017, Vermilion issued US $300.0 million of senior unsecured notes at par. The notes bear interest at a rate of 5.625% per annum, 
paid semi-annually on March 15 and September 15, and mature on March 15, 2025. As direct senior unsecured obligations of Vermilion, the notes 
rank equally in right of payment with existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company.

The senior unsecured notes were recognized at amortized cost and include the transaction costs directly related to the issuance.

Vermilion may redeem some or all of the senior unsecured notes at the redemption prices set forth in the following table plus any accrued and 
unpaid interest, if redeemed during the twelve-month period beginning on March 15 of each of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption price
2022  101.406 %
2023 and thereafter  100.000 %

Vermilion Energy Inc.  ■  Page 24  ■  2022 Third Quarter Management's Discussion and Analysis



2030 senior unsecured notes

On April 26, 2022, Vermilion closed a private offering of US $400.0 million 8-year senior unsecured notes. The notes were priced at 99.241% of par, 
mature on May 1, 2030, and bear interest at a rate of 6.875% per annum. Interest is to be paid semi-annually on May 1 and November 1, 
commencing on November 1, 2022. The notes are senior unsecured obligations of Vermilion and rank equally with existing and future senior 
unsecured indebtedness. 

The senior unsecured notes were recognized at amortized cost and include the transaction costs directly related to the issuance.

Vermilion may, at its option, redeem the notes prior to maturity as follows:
• On or after May 1, 2025, Vermilion may redeem some or all of the senior unsecured notes at the redemption prices set forth below, 

together with accrued and unpaid interest.
• Prior to May 1, 2025, Vermilion may redeem up to 35% of the original principal amount of the notes with an amount of cash not greater 

than the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings at a redemption price of 106.875% of the principal amount of the notes, together with 
accrued and unpaid interest.

• Prior to May 1, 2025, Vermilion may also redeem some or all of the notes at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes, 
plus a “make-whole premium,” together with applicable premium, accrued and unpaid interest. 

Year Redemption price
2025  103.438 %
2026  102.292 %
2027  101.146 %
2028 and thereafter  100.000 %

Shareholders' capital

The following table outlines our dividend payment history:

Date Frequency Dividend per unit or share
January 2003 to December 2007 Monthly $0.170
January 2008 to December 2012 Monthly $0.190
January 2013 to December 2013 Monthly $0.200
January 2014 to March 2018 Monthly $0.215
April 2018 to February 2020 Monthly $0.230
March 2020 Monthly $0.115
April 2022 to July 2022 Quarterly $0.060
August 2022 onwards Quarterly $0.080

In the first quarter of 2022, we announced our plan to distribute a fixed quarterly dividend due to stronger commodity prices and a strengthened 
balance sheet. In August 2022, we announced a 33% increase to our quarterly cash dividend effective for the Q3 2022 distribution.

The following table reconciles the change in shareholders’ capital:

Shareholders’ Capital  Shares ('000s) Amount
Balance at January 1  162,261  4,241,773 
Vesting of equity based awards  2,270  41,193 
Shares issued for equity based compensation  526  13,123 
Share-settled dividends on vested equity based awards  165  4,185 
Repurchase of shares  (2,339)  (60,866) 
Balance at September 30  162,883  4,239,408 

As at September 30, 2022, there were approximately 5.7 million equity based compensation awards outstanding. As at November 9, 2022, there 
were approximately 163.2 million common shares issued and outstanding.
On July 4, 2022, the Toronto Stock Exchange approved our notice of intention to commence a normal course issuer bid ("the NCIB"). The NCIB 
allows Vermilion to purchase up to 16,076,666 common shares (representing approximately 10% of outstanding common shares) beginning July 6, 
2022 and ending July 5, 2023. Common shares purchased under the NCIB will be cancelled.
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In the third quarter of 2022, Vermilion purchased 2.34 million common shares under the NCIB for total consideration of $71.7 million. The common 
shares purchased under the NCIB were cancelled.

Asset Retirement Obligations
As at September 30, 2022, asset retirement obligations were $855.2 million compared to $1,000.6 million as at December 31, 2021. The decrease in 
asset retirement obligations is primarily attributable to increases in country-specific risk-free rates and the Euro weakening against the Canadian 
dollar.

The present value of the obligation is calculated using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate, calculated using a credit spread added to risk-free rates based 
on long-term, risk-free government bonds. Vermilion's credit spread is determined using the Company's expected cost of borrowing at the end of the 
reporting period.

The risk-free rates and credit spread used as inputs to discount the obligations were as follows:

Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021 Change
Credit spread added to below noted risk-free rates  4.5 %  4.9 %  (0.4) %
Country specific risk-free rate

Canada  3.1 %  1.8 %  1.3 %
United States  3.9 %  1.9 %  2.0 %
France  3.0 %  0.8 %  2.2 %
Netherlands  2.2 %  (0.3) %  2.5 %
Germany  2.1 %  0.1 %  2.0 %
Ireland  2.9 %  0.5 %  2.4 %
Australia  4.0 %  1.9 %  2.1 %

Current cost estimates are inflated to the estimated time of abandonment using inflation rates of between 1.5% and 4.2% (as at December 31, 2021 
- between 1.1% and 3.1%).
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Risks and Uncertainties
 
Vermilion is exposed to various market and operational risks. For a discussion of these risks, please see Vermilion's MD&A and Annual Information 
Form, each for the year ended December 31, 2021 available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com or on Vermilion’s website at www.vermilionenergy.com.

In addition to those risks noted above, on September 30, 2022, European Union energy ministers reached a political agreement on a proposal for a 
Council Regulation resulting in an agreed upon mandatory temporary solidarity contribution on certain businesses, including oil and gas producers 
like Vermilion. This Regulation was formally adopted by Member States by written procedure. The minimum 33% solidarity contribution would be 
calculated on taxable profits, as determined under national tax rules in the fiscal year starting in 2022 and/or in 2023, which are above a 20% 
increase in the average yearly taxable profits for the previous four fiscal years. The solidarity contribution will apply in addition to regular taxes and 
levies applicable in member states. As at September 30, 2022, the European Union member states that Vermilion operate in had not substantively 
enacted legislation to effect this solidarity contribution and, as such, no amount have been recorded for solidarity contributions in the nine months 
ended September 30, 2022. There is risk and uncertainty regarding the timing and amounts that may be levied. 

Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, gains and losses, and disclosures of any possible contingencies. These estimates and 
assumptions are developed based on the best available information which management believed to be reasonable at the time such estimates and 
assumptions were made. As such, these assumptions are uncertain at the time estimates are made and could change, resulting in a material impact 
on Vermilion’s consolidated financial statements. Estimates are reviewed by management on an ongoing basis and as a result may change from 
period to period due to the availability of new information or changes in circumstances. Additionally, as a result of the unique circumstances of each 
jurisdiction that Vermilion operates in, the critical accounting estimates may affect one or more jurisdictions. There have been no material changes to 
our critical accounting estimates used in applying accounting policies for the nine months ended September 30, 2022. Further information, including 
a discussion of critical accounting estimates, can be found in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and annual MD&A for the year 
ended December 31, 2021, available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com or on Vermilion’s website at www.vermilionenergy.com.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not entered into any guarantee or off balance sheet arrangements that would materially impact our financial position or results of 
operations.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in Vermilion’s internal control over financial reporting ("ICFR") during the period covered by this MD&A that materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

Vermilion has limited the scope of design controls and procedures ("DC&P") and internal controls over financial reporting to exclude controls, policies
and procedures of Leucrotta Exploration Inc., which was acquired on May 31, 2022. The scope limitation is in accordance with section 3.3(1)(b) of NI 
52-109 which allows an issuer to limit the design of DC&P and ICFR to exclude controls, policies, and procedures of a business that the issuer 
acquired not more than 365 days before the end of the fiscal period.

The table below presents the summary financial information of Leucrotta Exploration Inc. included in Vermilion's financial statements as at and for 
the nine months ended September 30, 2022:

($M) As at Sep 30, 2022
Non-current assets  634,862 
Non-current liabilities  99,683 
Net assets  535,179 

($M) Nine Months Ended Sep 30, 2022
Revenue  26,853 
Net earnings  8,200 
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Cybersecurity
Vermilion has an information security training and compliance program that is completed at least annually. We have not experienced a cybersecurity 
breach in the last three years.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Vermilion did not adopt any new accounting pronouncements as at September 30, 2022.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our officers have established and maintained disclosure controls and procedures and evaluated the effectiveness of these controls in conjunction 
with our filings.

As of September 30, 2022, we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on 
this evaluation, the President, for this specific purpose of acting in the capacity of Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer have concluded 
and certified that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
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Supplemental Table 1: Netbacks
The following table includes financial statement information on a per unit basis by business unit. Liquids includes crude oil, condensate, and NGLs. 
Natural gas sales volumes have been converted on a basis of six thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of oil equivalent.

Q3 2022 YTD 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2021
 Liquids Natural Gas Total Liquids Natural Gas Total Total Total

$/bbl $/mcf $/boe $/bbl $/mcf $/boe $/boe $/boe
Canada     
Sales 96.85 6.31 69.48 101.92 6.11 72.10  48.54  43.85 
Royalties (17.71) (0.71) (11.46) (17.38) (0.58) (11.03)  (5.91)  (5.32) 
Transportation (2.88) (0.29) (2.36) (2.86) (0.25) (2.24)  (2.02)  (2.06) 
Operating (17.19) (1.66) (13.83) (16.05) (1.36) (12.45)  (11.27)  (11.16) 
Operating netback 59.07 3.65 41.83 65.63 3.92 46.38  29.34  25.31 
General and administration (1.40) (1.54)  (1.01)  (1.05) 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 40.43 44.84  28.33  24.26 
United States
Sales 101.22 8.33 89.36 104.50 6.48 89.00  66.61  61.29 
Royalties (27.01) (2.42) (24.11) (27.33) (1.88) (23.54)  (17.89)  (16.27) 
Transportation (0.20) — (0.16) (0.50) — (0.38)  (1.04)  (0.80) 
Operating (15.79) (2.61) (15.76) (13.24) (2.13) (13.14)  (8.84)  (9.64) 
Operating netback 58.22 3.30 49.33 63.43 2.47 51.94  38.84  34.58 
General and administration (2.49) (2.62)  (2.51)  (2.34) 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 46.84 49.32  36.33  32.24 
France    
Sales 135.49 — 135.49 137.00 — 137.00  91.60  84.11 
Royalties (15.51) — (15.52) (14.80) — (14.80)  (12.73)  (11.59) 
Transportation (7.28) — (7.28) (7.39) — (7.39)  (7.34)  (8.40) 
Operating (21.57) — (21.57) (21.42) — (21.42)  (15.52)  (15.98) 
Operating netback 91.13 — 91.12 93.39 — 93.39  56.01  48.14 
General and administration (5.72) (5.44)  (3.35)  (3.60) 
Current income taxes (12.22) (11.86)  14.23  5.23 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 73.18 76.09  66.89  49.77 
Netherlands
Sales 139.28 68.73 408.30 108.27 46.92 279.36  104.68  69.67 
Royalties — — — — — —  (0.35)  (0.24) 
Operating — (4.92) (29.09) — (3.69) (21.86)  (12.87)  (12.73) 
Operating netback 139.28 63.81 379.21 108.27 43.23 257.50  91.46  56.70 
General and administration (1.24) (1.41)  (0.23)  (0.28) 
Current income taxes (59.27) (71.93)  (16.06)  (6.94) 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 318.70 184.16  75.17  49.48 
Germany
Sales 134.17 62.13 315.78 134.40 44.03 236.15  94.41  69.97 
Royalties (2.65) (1.79) (8.82) (2.67) (1.94) (9.72)  (1.77)  (2.05) 
Transportation (8.25) (0.53) (4.38) (9.26) (0.43) (4.02)  (4.89)  (4.52) 
Operating (15.77) (2.94) (17.19) (20.55) (2.99) (18.51)  (19.25)  (20.92) 
Operating netback 107.50 56.87 285.39 101.92 38.67 203.90  68.50  42.48 
General and administration (2.59) (2.61)  (3.33)  (3.95) 
Current income taxes (34.88) (19.37)  — 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 247.92 181.92  65.17  38.53 
Ireland
Sales — 43.20 259.18 — 34.01 204.06  137.58  79.75 
Transportation — (0.38) (2.30) — (0.37) (2.22)  (3.11)  (2.48) 
Operating — (1.99) (11.95) — (1.56) (9.35)  (8.54)  (8.18) 
Operating netback — 40.83 244.93 — 32.08 192.49  125.93  69.09 
General and administration 0.17 0.34  (0.88)  0.29 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 245.10 192.83  125.05  69.38 
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 Q3 2022 YTD 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2021
Liquids Natural Gas Total Liquids Natural Gas Total Total Total

 $/bbl $/mcf $/boe $/bbl $/mcf $/boe $/boe $/boe
Australia     
Sales 155.29 — 155.29 155.05 — 155.05  105.17  99.77 
Operating (40.98) — (40.98) (44.61) — (44.61)  (35.06)  (33.84) 
PRRT (1) (18.00) — (18.00) (16.36) — (16.36)  (17.36)  (9.86) 
Operating netback 96.31 — 96.31 94.08 — 94.08  52.75  56.07 
General and administration (4.21) (3.65)  (2.09)  (2.29) 
Current income taxes 11.34 3.27  (0.21)  3.25 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 103.44 93.70  50.45  57.03 

Total Company
Sales 108.72 24.68 127.39 112.72 19.50 114.76  68.19  56.58 
Realized hedging (loss) gain (2.56) (5.93) (18.22) (7.74) (4.11) (15.77)  (9.19)  (5.93) 
Royalties (16.54) (0.79) (10.94) (16.20) (0.65) (10.36)  (6.26)  (5.48) 
Transportation (3.36) (0.28) (2.57) (3.42) (0.24) (2.48)  (2.44)  (2.50) 
Operating (19.24) (2.29) (16.64) (18.76) (1.94) (15.37)  (13.21)  (12.93) 
PRRT (1) (1.14) — (0.60) (1.10) — (0.58)  (0.92)  (0.44) 
Operating netback 65.88 15.39 78.42 65.50 12.56 70.20  36.17  29.30 
General and administration (1.90) (1.93)  (1.56)  (1.53) 
Interest expense (3.23) (2.63)  (2.37)  (2.45) 
Realized foreign exchange (0.28) (0.16)  0.37  (0.18) 
Other income 0.80 0.62  0.48  0.52 
Corporate income taxes (6.74) (7.24)  0.18  0.09 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe) 67.07 58.86  33.27  25.75 

(1) Vermilion considers Australian PRRT to be an operating item and, accordingly, has included PRRT in the calculation of operating netbacks. Current income 
taxes presented above excludes PRRT.

Vermilion Energy Inc.  ■  Page 30  ■  2022 Third Quarter Management's Discussion and Analysis



Supplemental Table 2: Hedges
The prices in these tables may represent the weighted averages for several contracts with foreign currency amounts translated to the disclosure 
currency using forward rates as at the month-end date. The weighted average price for the portfolio of options listed below may not have the same 
payoff profile as the individual contracts. As such, the presentation of the weighted average prices is purely for indicative purposes.

The following tables outline Vermilion’s outstanding risk management positions as at September 30, 2022:

Unit Currency
Bought Put 

Volume

Weighted 
Average 

Bought Put 
Price

Sold Call 
Volume

Weighted 
Average 

Sold Call 
Price

Sold Put 
Volume

Weighted 
Average 
Sold Put 

Price
Sold Swap 

Volume

Weighted 
Average 

Sold Swap 
Price

Bought 
Swap 

Volume

Weighted 
Average 
Bought 

Swap Price
Dated Brent
Q4 2022 bbl USD  2,600  63.94  2,600  84.35  2,600  47.50  —  —  —  — 
WTI
Q4 2022 bbl USD  4,500  60.82  4,500  82.92  4,500  45.00  —  —  —  — 
AECO
Q4 2022 mcf CAD  3,142  3.69  3,142  7.70  —  —  18,853  4.95  —  — 
Q1 2023 mcf CAD  4,739  3.69  4,739  7.70  —  —  28,435  4.95  —  — 
AECO Basis (AECO less NYMEX Henry Hub)
Q4 2022 mcf USD  —  —  —  —  —  —  11,793  (1.09)  —  — 
Q2 2023 mcf USD  —  —  —  —  —  —  23,000  (1.13)  —  — 
Q3 2023 mcf USD  —  —  —  —  —  —  23,000  (1.13)  —  — 
Q4 2023 mcf USD  —  —  —  —  —  —  7,750  (1.13)  —  — 
NYMEX Henry Hub
Q4 2022 mcf USD  35,793  3.68  35,793  6.62  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q1 2023 mcf USD  24,000  4.00  24,000  8.44  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q2 2023 mcf USD  5,000  4.00  5,000  8.75  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q3 2023 mcf USD  5,000  4.00  5,000  8.75  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q4 2023 mcf USD  1,685  4.00  1,685  8.75  —  —  —  —  —  — 
NBP
Q4 2022 mcf EUR  23,339  8.85  23,339  12.75  19,654  3.66  4,913  4.91  —  — 
Q1 2023 mcf EUR  18,426  11.76  18,426  19.65  14,740  4.10  —  —  —  — 
Q2 2023 mcf EUR  7,370  11.48  7,370  17.46  4,913  4.40  —  —  —  — 
Q3 2023 mcf EUR  2,457  22.71  2,457  35.90  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q1 2024 mcf EUR  4,913  41.03  4,913  84.26  —  —  —  —  —  — 
TTF
Q4 2022 mcf EUR  14,740  24.01  14,740  46.12  2,457  3.52  —  —  —  — 
Q1 2023 mcf EUR  14,740  24.01  14,740  46.12  2,457  3.52  —  —  —  — 
Q2 2023 mcf EUR  19,654  34.53  19,654  53.21  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q3 2023 mcf EUR  19,654  34.53  19,654  53.21  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q4 2023 mcf EUR  12,284  44.84  12,284  84.99  —  —  3,685  67.41  —  — 
Q1 2024 mcf EUR  31,938  40.69  31,938  78.00  —  —  3,685  67.41  —  — 
Q2 2024 mcf EUR  3,593  37.56  3,593  74.66  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Q3 2024 mcf EUR  3,593  37.56  3,593  74.66  —  —  —  —  —  — 

VET Equity Swaps Initial Share Price Share Volume
Swap Jan 2020 - Apr 2023  20.9788 CAD 2,250,000
Swap Jan 2020 - Jul 2024  22.4587 CAD 1,500,000

Cross Currency Interest Rate Receive Notional Amount Receive Rate Pay Notional Amount Pay Rate
Swap October 2022  304,018,089 USD SOFR + 1.35%  400,000,000 CAD CDOR + 0.88%

Vermilion Energy Inc.  ■  Page 31  ■  2022 Third Quarter Management's Discussion and Analysis



Supplemental Table 3: Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions
By classification ($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Drilling and development  177,878  63,173  370,207  220,388 
Exploration and evaluation  6,137  3,277  12,305  8,601 
Capital expenditures  184,015  66,450  382,512  228,989 
     
Acquisitions  2,203  92,191  506,715  104,780 
Acquisition of securities  4,017  —  22,318  — 
Contingent consideration  —  —  —  330 
Working capital assumed  —  2,229  6,122  2,222 
Acquisitions  6,220  94,420  535,155  107,332 
     
By category ($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Drilling, completion, new well equip and tie-in, workovers and recompletions  153,641  38,666  305,529  154,901 
Production equipment and facilities  21,441  26,092  56,436  62,982 
Seismic, studies, land and other  8,933  1,692  20,547  11,106 
Capital expenditures  184,015  66,450  382,512  228,989 
Acquisitions  6,220  94,420  535,155  107,332 
Total capital expenditures and acquisitions  190,235  160,870  917,667  336,321 
     
Capital expenditures by country ($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Canada  83,343  29,660  163,720  104,191 
United States  28,895  5,519  60,944  28,948 
France  9,624  8,886  28,548  24,678 
Netherlands  5,547  2,789  7,420  14,605 
Germany  3,334  3,318  16,068  9,424 
Ireland  735  918  1,707  1,156 
Australia  44,068  6,073  89,420  26,030 
Central and Eastern Europe  8,469  9,287  14,685  19,957 
Total capital expenditures  184,015  66,450  382,512  228,989 

Acquisitions by country ($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Canada  4,304  150  529,363  508 
United States  —  94,170  1,075  94,170 
Netherlands  707  —  707  — 
Germany  1,209  100  3,868  12,654 
Ireland  —  —  142  — 
Total acquisitions  6,220  94,420  535,155  107,332 
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Supplemental Table 4: Production
 Q3/22 Q2/22 Q1/22 Q4/21 Q3/21 Q2/21 Q1/21 Q4/20 Q3/20 Q2/20 Q1/20 Q4/19
Canada             

Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  16,835  17,042  15,980  16,388  16,809  16,868  17,767  19,301  19,847  22,545  22,767  23,259 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  4,204  4,873  4,892  4,785  4,426  5,558  4,556  4,662  5,200  5,047  4,634  4,140 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  6,870  7,155  7,286  7,073  6,862  7,767  7,016  7,334  8,350  8,248  6,943  7,005 
NGLs (bbls/d)  11,074  12,028  12,178  11,858  11,288  13,325  11,572  11,996  13,550  13,295  11,577  11,145 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  145.04  143.94  140.55  128.85  138.42  146.55  138.41  135.27  155.15  164.08  151.16  145.14 
Total (boe/d)  52,080  53,060  51,584  49,720  51,168  54,618  52,407  53,840  59,256  63,187  59,537  58,593 

United States
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  2,824  2,846  2,675  2,647  3,520  1,888  2,322  2,495  3,243  3,971  2,481  3,149 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  35  40  24  26  2  2  —  1  6  6  6  12 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  1,031  958  1,056  1,388  1,206  928  1,058  1,294  1,158  1,340  1,079  1,156 
NGLs (bbls/d)  1,066  998  1,080  1,414  1,208  930  1,058  1,295  1,164  1,346  1,085  1,168 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  7.03  6.74  7.56  9.09  6.75  5.51  5.95  6.87  7.94  8.35  6.72  8.20 
Total (boe/d)  5,062  4,967  5,014  5,575  5,854  3,736  4,373  4,934  5,730  6,708  4,685  5,683 

France
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  6,818  8,126  8,389  8,453  8,677  9,013  9,062  9,255  9,347  7,046  9,957  10,264 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Total (boe/d)  6,818  8,126  8,389  8,453  8,677  9,013  9,062  9,255  9,347  7,046  9,957  10,264 

Netherlands
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  —  1  1  —  6  1  6  1  —  1  3  4 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  74  60  83  97  104  95  92  99  83  86  84  86 
NGLs (bbls/d)  74  60  83  97  104  95  92  99  83  86  84  86 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  29.15  35.22  39.03  51.98  42.48  37.59  41.45  42.95  46.09  47.31  48.33  47.99 
Total (boe/d)  4,933  5,930  6,589  8,761  7,190  6,362  7,006  7,257  7,764  7,972  8,143  8,088 

Germany
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  1,764  1,331  1,158  1,127  1,043  1,093  911  960  964  1,039  909  800 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  26.54  25.36  26.95  18.00  16.19  15.60  13.40  11.50  11.25  13.23  14.64  15.44 
Total (boe/d)  6,187  5,558  5,650  4,127  3,741  3,694  3,144  2,876  2,839  3,244  3,349  3,373 

Ireland
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  25.74  27.93  30.26  30.12  22.67  30.19  34.14  34.76  35.12  38.57  41.38  42.30 
Total (boe/d)  4,290  4,655  5,043  5,020  3,778  5,031  5,690  5,793  5,853  6,428  6,896  7,049 

Australia
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  4,763  2,465  3,888  2,742  4,190  3,835  4,489  3,781  4,549  5,299  4,041  4,548 
Total (boe/d)  4,763  2,465  3,888  2,742  4,190  3,835  4,489  3,781  4,549  5,299  4,041  4,548 

Central and Eastern Europe
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  0.63  0.64  0.34  0.12  0.22  0.28  0.63  0.67  0.80  2.89  3.27  1.66 
Total (boe/d)  104  106  57  20  36  46  104  111  132  483  546  276 

Consolidated
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  33,003  31,811  32,091  31,356  34,245  32,698  34,556  35,793  37,951  39,899  40,157  42,024 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  4,312  4,973  4,999  4,908  4,532  5,656  4,648  4,762  5,289  5,142  4,724  4,237 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  7,901  8,113  8,342  8,461  8,068  8,695  8,074  8,627  9,509  9,588  8,022  8,160 
NGLs (bbls/d)  12,213  13,086  13,341  13,369  12,600  14,351  12,722  13,389  14,798  14,730  12,746  12,397 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  234.12  239.83  244.69  238.16  226.73  235.72  233.98  232.00  256.34  274.42  265.51  260.72 
Total (boe/d)  84,237  84,868  86,213  84,417  84,633  86,335  86,276  87,848  95,471  100,366  97,154  97,875 
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YTD 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Canada     

Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  16,622  16,954  21,106  23,971  17,400  6,015 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  4,654  4,831  4,886  4,295  3,754  3,036 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  7,102  7,179  7,719  6,988  5,914  4,144 
NGLs (bbls/d)  11,756  12,010  12,605  11,283  9,668  7,180 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  143.19  138.03  151.38  148.35  129.37  97.89 
Total (boe/d)  52,244  51,968  58,942  59,979  48,630  29,510 

United States     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  2,782  2,597  3,046  2,514  1,069  662 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  33  8  5  18  8  4 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  1,015  1,146  1,218  996  452  50 
NGLs (bbls/d)  1,048  1,154  1,223  1,014  460  54 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  7.11  6.84  7.47  6.89  2.78  0.39 
Total (boe/d)  5,015  4,890  5,514  4,675  1,992  781 

France     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  7,772  8,799  8,903  10,435  11,362  11,084 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  —  —  —  0.19  0.21  — 
Total (boe/d)  7,772  8,799  8,903  10,467  11,396  11,084 

Netherlands     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  1  3  1  3  —  — 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  72  97  88  88  90  90 
NGLs (bbls/d)  72  97  88  88  90  90 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  34.43  43.40  46.16  49.10  46.13  40.54 
Total (boe/d)  5,811  7,334  7,782  8,274  7,779  6,847 

Germany     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  1,420  1,044  968  917  1,004  1,060 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  26.28  15.81  12.65  15.31  15.66  19.39 
Total (boe/d)  5,800  3,679  3,076  3,468  3,614  4,291 

Ireland     
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  27.96  29.25  37.44  46.57  55.17  58.43 
Total (boe/d)  4,660  4,875  6,240  7,762  9,195  9,737 

Australia     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  3,708  3,810  4,416  5,662  4,494  5,770 
Total (boe/d)  3,708  3,810  4,416  5,662  4,494  5,770 

Central and Eastern Europe
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  0.54  0.31  1.90  0.42  1.02  — 
Total (boe/d)  89  51  317  70  169  — 

Consolidated     
Light and medium crude oil (bbls/d)  32,305  33,208  38,441  43,502  35,329  24,591 
Condensate (1) (bbls/d)  4,759  4,936  4,980  4,400  3,853  3,130 
Other NGLs (1) (bbls/d)  8,117  8,325  8,937  7,984  6,366  4,194 
NGLs (bbls/d)  12,876  13,261  13,917  12,384  10,219  7,324 
Conventional natural gas (mmcf/d)  239.51  233.64  256.99  266.82  250.33  216.64 
Total (boe/d)  85,099  85,408  95,190  100,357  87,270  68,021 

(1) Under National Instrument 51-101 "Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities", disclosure of production volumes should include segmentation by 
product type as defined in the instrument. This table provides a reconciliation from "crude oil and condensate", "NGLs" and "natural gas" to the product types. In 
this report, references to "crude oil" and "light and medium crude oil" mean "light crude oil and medium crude oil" and references to "natural gas" mean 
"conventional natural gas". Production volumes reported are based on quantities as measured at the first point of sale.
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Supplemental Table 5: Operational and Financial Data by Core Region
Production volumes (1)

Q3/22 Q2/22 Q1/22 Q4/21 Q3/21 Q2/21 Q1/21 Q4/20 Q3/20 Q2/20 Q1/20 Q4/19
North America
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  23,898  24,801  23,571  23,846  24,757  24,316  24,645  26,459  28,296  31,569  29,888  30,560 
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,113  8,342  8,461  8,068  8,695  8,074  8,628  9,508  9,588  8,022  8,161 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  152.07  150.68  148.11  137.93  145.18  152.06  144.36  142.13  163.09  172.43  157.88  153.34 
Total (boe/d)  57,142  58,027  56,598  55,295  57,022  58,354  56,780  58,774  64,986  69,895  64,222  64,276 

International
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  13,419  11,983  13,519  12,419  14,020  14,037  14,560  14,096  14,943  13,471  14,994  15,702 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  82.05  89.15  96.58  100.22  81.55  83.66  89.62  89.86  93.25  101.99  107.63  107.38 
Total (boe/d)  27,095  26,840  29,616  29,123  27,612  27,981  29,495  29,073  30,484  30,472  32,932  33,598 

Consolidated
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  37,315  36,784  37,090  36,264  38,777  38,354  39,204  40,555  43,240  45,041  44,881  46,261 
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,113  8,342  8,461  8,068  8,695  8,074  8,627  9,509  9,588  8,022  8,160 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  234.12  239.83  244.69  238.16  226.73  235.72  233.98  232.00  256.34  274.42  265.51  260.72 
Total (boe/d)  84,237  84,868  86,213  84,417  84,633  86,335  86,276  87,848  95,471  100,366  97,154  97,875 

(1) Please refer to Supplemental Table 4 "Production" for disclosure by product type.

Sales volumes
Q3/22 Q2/22 Q1/22 Q4/21 Q3/21 Q2/21 Q1/21 Q4/20 Q3/20 Q2/20 Q1/20 Q4/19

North America
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  23,897  24,801  23,571  23,845  24,757  24,316  24,645  26,459  28,297  31,569  29,888  30,560 
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,113  8,342  8,461  8,068  8,695  8,074  8,628  9,508  9,588  8,022  8,161 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  152.07  150.68  148.11  137.93  145.18  152.06  144.36  142.13  163.09  172.43  157.88  153.34 
Total (boe/d)  57,142  58,027  56,598  55,295  57,022  58,354  56,780  58,774  64,986  69,895  64,222  64,276 

International
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  11,493  11,720  12,615  13,985  15,227  13,859  11,421  15,359  15,689  12,202  17,090  13,864 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  82.05  89.15  96.58  100.22  81.55  83.66  89.62  89.86  93.25  101.99  107.63  107.38 
Total (boe/d)  25,169  26,578  28,712  30,689  28,820  27,802  26,357  30,336  31,229  29,201  35,028  31,760 

Consolidated
Crude oil and condensate (bbls/d)  35,391  36,522  36,186  37,830  39,985  38,174  36,066  41,818  43,985  43,771  46,977  44,423 
NGLs (bbls/d)  7,901  8,113  8,342  8,461  8,068  8,695  8,074  8,627  9,509  9,588  8,022  8,160 
Natural gas (mmcf/d)  234.12  239.83  244.69  238.16  226.73  235.72  233.98  232.00  256.34  274.42  265.51  260.72 
Total (boe/d)  82,312  84,607  85,310  85,984  85,841  86,156  83,138  89,111  96,217  99,096  99,250  96,037 
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Financial results
Q3/22 Q2/22 Q1/22 Q4/21 Q3/21 Q2/21 Q1/21 Q4/20 Q3/20 Q2/20 Q1/20 Q4/19

North America
Crude oil and condensate sales ($/bbl)  114.82  134.72  111.42  92.99  82.23  75.43  66.31  51.06  49.79  28.94  50.25  66.31 
NGL sales ($/bbl)  44.64  51.86  46.94  47.26  35.55  25.43  29.39  19.20  15.04  8.94  8.92  14.63 
Natural gas sales ($/mcf)  6.41  7.13  4.80  5.07  3.80  2.72  3.98  2.77  2.02  1.60  1.92  2.29 
Sales ($/boe)  71.24  83.34  65.88  59.97  50.40  42.30  43.08  32.51  28.94  18.24  29.22  38.86 
Royalties ($/boe)  (12.58)  (12.51)  (11.24)  (9.26)  (7.14)  (5.98)  (5.49)  (3.64)  (3.58)  (1.67)  (3.54)  (4.98) 
Transportation ($/boe)  (2.16)  (2.15)  (1.91)  (1.86)  (1.92)  (1.90)  (2.05)  (1.92)  (1.74)  (1.72)  (1.91)  (1.76) 
Operating ($/boe)  (14.00)  (11.58)  (11.95)  (11.68)  (11.02)  (10.89)  (11.21)  (10.94)  (7.82)  (9.60)  (11.93)  (11.15) 
General and administration ($/boe)  (1.27)  (1.52)  (1.26)  (2.01)  (1.14)  (0.91)  (1.34)  (1.94)  (0.78)  (1.52)  (0.84)  (0.97) 
Corporate income taxes ($/boe)  (0.03)  —  (0.02)  0.42  (0.05)  (0.04)  (0.04)  0.04  (0.02)  (0.02)  (0.04)  (0.11) 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe)  41.20  55.58  39.51  35.58  29.13  22.57  22.95  14.11  14.99  3.72  10.96  19.89 

Fund flows from operations  216,579  293,470  201,193  180,979  152,764  119,916  117,227  76,375  89,635  23,639  64,048  117,623 
Drilling and development  (112,238)  (54,913)  (57,513)  (89,643)  (35,179)  (38,847)  (59,113)  (33,781)  (9,575)  (23,979)  (197,926)  (69,775) 
Exploration and evaluation  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Free cash flow  104,341  238,557  143,680  91,336  117,585  81,069  58,114  42,594  80,060  (340)  (133,878)  47,848 

International
Crude oil and condensate sales ($/bbl)  140.09  146.67  136.69  103.53  94.91  85.41  81.40  62.65  58.19  50.27  73.35  82.14 
Natural gas sales ($/mcf)  58.55  32.33  36.75  35.54  18.82  9.83  7.98  6.27  2.91  2.28  4.44  5.49 
Sales ($/boe)  254.86  173.14  183.66  163.23  103.39  72.16  62.39  50.30  37.94  28.98  49.42  54.42 
Royalties ($/boe)  (7.21)  (7.23)  (5.43)  (4.13)  (4.52)  (3.83)  (3.53)  (3.02)  (3.32)  (2.16)  (3.27)  (3.85) 
Transportation ($/boe)  (3.51)  (3.64)  (2.91)  (3.40)  (3.47)  (4.64)  (2.76)  (2.40)  (2.28)  (2.04)  (1.94)  (1.77) 
Operating ($/boe)  (22.63)  (22.11)  (19.86)  (18.86)  (17.55)  (16.56)  (16.42)  (16.99)  (15.18)  (14.35)  (16.13)  (15.28) 
General and administration ($/boe)  (3.34)  (3.16)  (3.02)  (2.53)  (2.40)  (2.61)  (2.06)  (2.92)  (2.53)  (2.72)  (2.63)  (3.70) 
Corporate income taxes ($/boe)  (21.97)  (28.73)  (17.63)  (12.17)  0.64  (0.19)  0.66  2.25  0.04  (0.02)  (0.11)  2.22 
PRRT ($/boe)  (1.96)  (0.83)  (2.60)  (1.96)  (2.74)  (0.58)  (0.60)  (1.45)  (1.27)  (1.21)  (2.90)  (0.50) 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe)  194.24  107.44  132.19  120.18  73.35  43.74  37.69  25.78  13.40  6.47  22.43  31.54 

Fund flows from operations  449,771  259,840  341,626  339,286  194,505  110,654  89,403  71,934  38,498  17,193  71,526  92,160 
Drilling and development  (65,640)  (54,575)  (25,328)  (29,359)  (27,994)  (38,856)  (20,399)  (19,122)  (20,187)  (18,404)  (29,507)  (27,339) 
Exploration and evaluation  (6,137)  (3,665)  (2,503)  (26,805)  (3,277)  (1,473)  (3,851)  (6,991)  (1,568)  109  (6,271)  (3,511) 
Free cash flow  377,994  201,600  313,795  283,122  163,234  70,325  65,153  45,821  16,743  (1,102)  35,748  61,310 

Q3/22 Q2/22 Q1/22 Q4/21 Q3/21 Q2/21 Q1/21 Q4/20 Q3/20 Q2/20 Q1/20 Q4/19
Consolidated
Crude oil and condensate sales ($/bbl)  123.02  138.55  120.23  96.88  87.05  79.06  71.09  55.31  52.79  34.89  58.66  71.25 
NGL sales ($/bbl)  44.64  51.86  46.94  47.26  35.55  25.43  29.39  19.20  15.04  8.94  8.92  14.63 
Natural gas sales ($/mcf)  24.68  16.50  17.41  17.89  9.20  5.24  5.51  4.13  2.34  1.85  2.94  3.61 
Sales ($/boe)  127.39  111.55  105.52  96.82  68.19  51.93  49.20  38.57  31.86  21.40  36.35  44.01 
Royalties ($/boe)  (10.94)  (10.85)  (9.29)  (7.43)  (6.26)  (5.29)  (4.87)  (3.43)  (3.50)  (1.81)  (3.45)  (4.60) 
Transportation ($/boe)  (2.57)  (2.62)  (2.25)  (2.41)  (2.44)  (2.78)  (2.27)  (2.08)  (1.92)  (1.81)  (1.92)  (1.76) 
Operating ($/boe)  (16.64)  (14.89)  (14.61)  (14.24)  (13.21)  (12.72)  (12.86)  (13.00)  (10.21)  (11.00)  (13.41)  (12.52) 
General and administration ($/boe)  (1.90)  (2.04)  (1.85)  (2.20)  (1.56)  (1.46)  (1.57)  (2.27)  (1.35)  (1.88)  (1.47)  (1.88) 
Corporate income taxes ($/boe)  (6.74)  (9.03)  (5.95)  (4.07)  0.18  (0.09)  0.18  0.80  —  (0.02)  (0.06)  0.66 
PRRT ($/boe)  (0.60)  (0.26)  (0.87)  (0.70)  (0.92)  (0.19)  (0.19)  (0.49)  (0.41)  (0.36)  (1.02)  (0.16) 
Interest ($/boe)  (3.23)  (2.74)  (1.93)  (2.06)  (2.37)  (2.41)  (2.57)  (2.42)  (1.97)  (1.98)  (2.21)  (2.17) 
Realized derivatives ($/boe)  (18.22)  (10.36)  (18.78)  (23.97)  (9.19)  (5.05)  (3.43)  0.10  0.47  6.07  5.47  2.57 
Realized foreign exchange ($/boe)  (0.28)  (0.30)  0.10  (0.30)  0.37  (0.25)  (0.69)  0.16  (0.31)  0.44  0.94  0.23 
Realized other ($/boe)  0.80  0.36  0.70  1.29  0.48  0.35  0.73  0.56  0.29  0.03  (0.37)  0.03 
Fund flows from operations ($/boe)  67.08  58.82  50.79  40.71  33.26  22.07  21.64  16.49  12.97  9.09  18.84  24.41 

Fund flows from operations  507,876  452,901  389,868  322,173  262,696  172,942  162,051  135,212  114,776  81,852  170,225  215,592 
Drilling and development  (177,878)  (109,488)  (82,841)  (119,002)  (63,173)  (77,703)  (79,512)  (52,903)  (29,762)  (42,383)  (227,433)  (97,114) 
Exploration and evaluation  (6,137)  (3,665)  (2,503)  (26,805)  (3,277)  (1,473)  (3,851)  (6,991)  (1,568)  109  (6,271)  (3,511) 
Free cash flow  323,861  339,748  304,524  176,366  196,246  93,766  78,688  75,318  83,446  39,578  (63,479)  114,967 
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Non-GAAP and Other Specified Financial Measures 
 
This MD&A includes references to certain financial measures which do not have standardized meanings and may not be comparable to similar 
measures presented by other issuers. These financial measures include fund flows from operations, a total of segments measure of profit or loss in 
accordance with IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (please see Segmented Information in the Notes to the condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements) and net debt, a capital management measure in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” (please see Capital 
Disclosures in the Notes to the condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements).

In addition, this MD&A includes financial measures which are not specified, defined, or determined under IFRS and are therefore considered non-
GAAP financial measures and may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. These non-GAAP financial measures include:

Acquisitions: The sum of acquisitions from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Vermilion common shares issued as consideration, the 
estimated value of contingent consideration, the amount of acquiree's outstanding long-term debt assumed plus or net of acquired working capital 
deficit or surplus. We believe that including these components provides a useful measure of the economic investment associated with our acquisition 
activity. A reconciliation to the acquisitions line item in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows can be found in Supplemental Table 3 of this 
MD&A.

Capital expenditures: A non-GAAP financial measure calculated as the sum of drilling and development costs and exploration and evaluation costs 
from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows that is most directly comparable to cash flows used in investing activities. We consider capital 
expenditures to be a useful measure of our investment in our existing asset base. Capital expenditures are also referred to as E&D capital. 
Reconciliation to the primary financial statement measures can be found below.

($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 2022 2021
Drilling and development  177,878  63,173  370,207  220,388 
Exploration and evaluation  6,137  3,277  12,305  8,601 
Capital expenditures  184,015  66,450  382,512  228,989 

Cash dividends per share: A supplementary financial measure that represents cash dividends declared per share that is a useful measure of the 
dividends a common shareholder was entitled to during the period.

Covenants: The financial covenants on our revolving credit facility contain non-GAAP measures. The definitions for these financial covenants are 
included in Financial Position Review.

Diluted shares outstanding: The sum of shares outstanding at the period end plus outstanding awards under the VIP, based on current estimates 
of future performance factors and forfeiture rates.

('000s of shares) Q3 2022 Q3 2021
Shares outstanding  162,883  161,985 
Potential shares issuable pursuant to the VIP  5,691  7,027 
Diluted shares outstanding  168,574  169,012 

Fund flows from operations: A total of segments measure most directly comparable to net earnings. FFO is comprised of sales excluding royalties, 
transportation, operating, G&A, corporate income tax, PRRT, interest expense, realized loss on derivatives, realized foreign exchange gain (loss), 
and realized other income. The measure is used to assess the contribution of each business unit to Vermilion's ability to generate income necessary 
to pay dividends, repay debt, fund asset retirement obligations and make capital investments. Reconciliation to the primary financial statement 
measures can be found below.

Vermilion Energy Inc.  ■  Page 37  ■  2022 Third Quarter Management's Discussion and Analysis



Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
$M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe $M $/boe

Sales 964,678 127.39 538,530 68.19 2,633,701 114.76 1,313,846 56.58 
Royalties (82,854) (10.94) (49,435) (6.26) (237,714) (10.36) (127,337) (5.48) 
Transportation (19,498) (2.57) (19,273) (2.44) (56,920) (2.48) (58,128) (2.50) 
Operating (125,987) (16.64) (104,355) (13.21) (352,787) (15.37) (300,333) (12.93) 
General and administration (14,422) (1.90) (12,341) (1.56) (44,333) (1.93) (35,503) (1.53) 
Corporate income tax (expense) recovery (51,022) (6.74) 1,414 0.18 (166,195) (7.24) 2,068 0.09 
PRRT (4,545) (0.60) (7,271) (0.92) (13,273) (0.58) (10,144) (0.44) 
Interest expense (24,455) (3.23) (18,699) (2.37) (60,352) (2.63) (56,796) (2.45) 
Realized loss on derivatives (137,953) (18.22) (72,579) (9.19) (361,954) (15.77) (137,786) (5.93) 
Realized foreign exchange (loss) gain (2,103) (0.28) 2,921 0.37 (3,650) (0.16) (4,218) (0.18) 
Realized other income 6,037 0.80 3,784 0.48 14,122 0.62 12,020 0.52 
Fund flows from operations 507,876 67.07 262,696 33.27 1,350,645 58.86 597,689 25.75 
Equity based compensation (6,145) (7,823) (39,013) (34,899) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative 
instruments (1) 43,844 (279,393) (8,892) (353,359) 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (1) (44,929) (27,877) (37,059) (72,085) 
Accretion (14,285) (11,199) (41,669) (32,569) 
Depletion and depreciation (130,205) (167,808) (405,208) (423,472) 
Deferred tax (expense) recovery (84,570) 62,245 (91,974) (172,509) 
Gain on business combinations — — — 17,198 
Impairment reversal — 22,225 192,094 1,278,697 
Unrealized other expense (1) (507) (196) (1,270) (583) 
Net earnings (loss) 271,079 (147,130) 917,654 804,108 

(1) Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments, Unrealized foreign exchange loss, and Unrealized other expense are line items from the respective
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Free cash flow: A non-GAAP financial measure comparable to cash flows from operating activities that is comprised of fund flows from operations 
less drilling and development costs and exploration and evaluation costs. The measure is used to determine the funding available for investing and 
financing activities including payment of dividends, repayment of long-term debt, reallocation into existing business units and deployment into new 
ventures. Reconciliation to the primary financial statement measures can be found below.

($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Cash flows from operating activities 447,608 211,548 1,319,025 584,101 
Changes in non-cash operating working capital 49,882 46,006 10,614 (1,898) 
Asset retirement obligations settled 10,386 5,142 21,006 15,486 
Fund flows from operations 507,876 262,696 1,350,645 597,689 
Drilling and development (177,878) (63,173) (370,207) (220,388) 
Exploration and evaluation (6,137) (3,277) (12,305) (8,601) 
Free cash flow 323,861 196,246 968,133 368,700 

Fund flows from operations per basic and diluted share: A supplementary financial measure, management assesses fund flows from operations 
on a per share basis as we believe this provides a measure of our operating performance after taking into account the issuance and potential future 
issuance of Vermilion common shares. Fund flows from operations per basic share is calculated by dividing fund flows from operations (total of 
segments measure) by the basic weighted average shares outstanding as defined under IFRS. Fund flows from operations per diluted share is 
calculated by dividing fund flows from operations by the sum of basic weighted average shares outstanding and incremental shares issuable under 
the equity based compensation plans as determined using the treasury stock method.

Net debt: A capital management measure in accordance with IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" that is most directly comparable to long-
term debt. Net debt is comprised of long-term debt (excluding unrealized foreign exchange on swapped USD borrowings) plus adjusted working 
capital (defined as current assets less current liabilities, excluding current derivatives and current lease liabilities), and represents Vermilion's net 
financing obligations after adjusting for the timing of working capital fluctuations. Net debt excludes lease obligations which are secured by a 
corresponding right-of-use asset. 
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Net debt to four quarter trailing fund flows from operations: A supplementary financial measure that is calculated as net debt (capital 
management measure) over the FFO (total of segments measure) from the preceding four quarters. The measure is used to assess the ability to 
repay debt.

Adjusted working capital: A non-GAAP financial measure defined as current assets less current liabilities, excluding current derivatives and current 
lease liabilities. The measure is used to calculate net debt, a capital management measure disclosed above. 

As at
($M) Sep 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Current assets 598,541 472,845 
Current derivative asset (46,185) (19,321) 
Current liabilities (987,070) (746,813) 
Current lease liability 17,774 15,032 
Current derivative liability 394,728 268,973 
Adjusted working capital (22,212) (9,284) 

Operating netback: A supplementary financial measure most directly comparable to net earnings that is calculated as sales less royalties, operating 
expense, transportation costs, PRRT, and realized hedging gains and losses presented on a per unit basis. Management assesses operating 
netback as a measure of the profitability and efficiency of our field operations. 

Fund flows from operations per boe: A supplementary financial measure calculated as FFO (total of segments measure) by boe production. Fund 
flows from operations netback is used by management to assess the profitability of our business units and Vermilion as a whole.

Payout and payout % of FFO: A non-GAAP financial measure and non-GAAP ratio respectively, most directly comparable to dividends declared. 
Payout is comprised of dividends declared plus drilling and development costs, exploration and evaluation costs, and asset retirement obligations 
settled, and payout % of FFO is calculated as payout over FFO (total of segments measure) . The measure is used to assess the amount of cash 
distributed back to shareholders and reinvested in the business for maintaining production and organic growth. The reconciliation of the measure to 
the primary financial statement measure can be found below. 

($M) Q3 2022 Q3 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Dividends declared 13,031 — 32,711 — 
Drilling and development 177,878 63,173 370,207 220,388 
Exploration and evaluation 6,137 3,277 12,305 8,601 
Asset retirement obligations settled 10,386 5,142 21,006 15,486 
Payout 207,432 71,592 436,229 244,475 

 % of fund flows from operations  41 %  27 %  32 %  41 %

Return on capital employed (ROCE): A non-GAAP ratio, ROCE is a measure that we use to analyze our profitability and the efficiency of our 
capital allocation process; the comparable primary financial statement measure is earnings before income taxes. ROCE is calculated by dividing net 
earnings before interest and taxes ("EBIT") by average capital employed over the preceding twelve months. Capital employed is calculated as total 
assets less current liabilities while average capital employed is calculated using the balance sheets at the beginning and end of the twelve-month 
period.

Twelve Months Ended
($M) Sep 30, 2022 Sep 30, 2021
Net earnings 1,262,242 746,401 
Taxes 324,054 186,099 
Interest expense 76,631 76,604 
EBIT 1,662,927 1,009,104 
Average capital employed 5,237,576 4,324,592 
Return on capital employed  32 %  23 %
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